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NATIONAL REPORTS

SECTION 1




Tim Walton,
President
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FROM THE PRESIDENT
AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE

The prospect of major national policy reform -
embodied in the proposals for a National Disability
Insurance Scheme and the National Disability
Strategy — has boosted expectations in the disability
sector. But, in the immediate term, many NDS
members continue to struggle with significant
financial, compliance and demand pressures.

POLICY ADVICE

NDS's policy work expanded during the year. National
submissions (an average of one every fortnight]
encompassed a broad range of topics, indicating
NDS’s engagement with portfolios beyond disability.
They included advice to the Parliamentary Inquiry
into Ageing, several submissions to Fair Work
Australia in relation to award modernisation and the
‘equal remuneration case’ for social and community
services workers, a response to the Model
Occupational Health and Safety Act, a submission

to the Australian Government on its draft report to
the United Nations on the Rights of Persons with
Disabilities, responses to the draft National Compact
with the Not-for-profit Sector, the Review of the

Ken Baker,
Chief Executive

Disability Service Standards, the proposed National
Standards for Out-of-home Care, and the draft
National Arts and Disability Strategy.

There were intense negotiations with government

in regard to the 2010-12 Disability Employment
Services contract (both during its development and
its implementation), with NDS represented on key
advisory groups. As part of the new contract, NDS

is administering a Capacity Building Fund project to
assist 'low-performing’ organisations to lift their star
ratings. Negotiations with the government on the
next contract will be a priority in the year ahead.

NDS led a successful campaign to overturn a ‘freeze’
on funding to Australian Disability Enterprises (ADEs)
revealed in the 2010 Federal Budget. The government
agreed to $4.5 million additional funding, a
suspension of Disability Maintenance Instrument
(DMI) assessments, and a review of case based
funding levels in the year ahead.

FaHCSIA funded a position at NDS to capitalise on
the revised Commonwealth Procurement Guidelines
which allow government agencies to by-pass an
open tender process when purchasing from ADEs.
The funded position has improved awareness across
the Australian Public Service about ADEs and
facilitated contact and contracts with ADEs. NDS

“DS led a successful campaign to overturn
a freeze on funding to Australian Disability
Enterprises revealed in the 2010 Federal Bud’,

National Disability Services Annual Report 09-10




organised a National Expo in Canberra in June 2010,
which brought together ADEs and several hundred
government officials.

The proposal for a National Disability Insurance
Scheme (NDIS] gained significant momentum
during the year. Recognition
has grown among policy-
makers that the current
disability services system
is unsustainable and, in
November 2009, the Prime
Minister announced that the
Productivity Commission
would conduct an inquiry
into the feasibility of a
national disability scheme.
That inquiry commenced in April 2010 with the
release of a comprehensive Issues Paper.

Two critical tasks for NDS and the disability sector are:

e influencing the re-design of the disability
services system [initially through the Productivity
Commission’s inquiry) so it reflects the principles
of entitlement, sustainability, equity and informed
choice

e building public support for the NDIS proposal.

NDS met with the Productivity Commission on
several occasions and conducted consultation
forums with members in all states and territories to
assist the development of a substantial submission
to the inquiry.

NDS members contributed generously to a
campaign fund established to promote the NDIS,
enabling the appointment of former NSW Minister,
John Della Bosca, as National Campaign Director.
A tripartite national steering committee (consisting
of representatives of service providers, people with
disability and family carers] was formed to guide
the campaign.

When Prime Minister Rudd announced the
establishment of the Productivity Commission
inquiry he also announced that the National
Disability Strategy would be referred to the Council

of Australian Governments (COAG). The National
Disability Strategy is a whole-of-government, 10-year
plan to advance the inclusion and rights of people
with disability across social, economic and civic life.
Elevating it to COAG is significant in achieving whole-
of-government ‘ownership’.

The NDIS and the National Disability Strategy

are potentially large and far-reaching policy
developments. To help respond to them and other
complex policy challenges, NDS gratefully received
a NSW Government grant of $2 million over three
years to establish a National Policy Research Unit
commencing in 2010-11. This unit will enhance
NDS's capacity to provide high-level, research-based
advice to governments and support to members
across Australia. It will help establish an evidence
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base for good policy and service practice.

NATIONAL CONFERENCES

NDS hosted three national conferences
in 2009-10.

The Employment Forum, held over three days in
Sydney, combined with the Workability International
Conference to attract over 600 people. Keynote
speakers included Bob Chamberlin, President and
CEO of the United States organisation NISH, who
spoke about using government’s purchasing power to
generate employment for people with disability. NDS
organised meetings between him and senior officials
in the federal government and the opposition.

E. Robert Chamberlin, President and Chief Executive Officer of
NISH, United States speaking to the NDS Employment Forum &
Workability International Conference, Hilton Hotel, Sydney

“e proposal for a National Disability
Insurance Scheme gained significant

momentum during the ye’,
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In May 2010, a combined National Accommodation
and Social Participation Conference on the Gold
Coast attracted 450 registrations and explored

the challenges associated with managing change.
Californian Jeff Strully, Executive Director of Jay
Nolan Community Services, spoke engagingly about
his experiences in transforming his organisation to
be person-centred.

The annual CEO Meeting in Decemberin

Canberra attracted 230 leaders from NDS

member organisations and focused on large policy
developments and the provision of management
advice. Bill Moss, AM delivered the Kenneth Jenkins
Oration and attracted media attention for his
criticism of inaccessible airlines.

Bill Moss AM, Chairman, Moss Capital speaking at the NDS 2009
CEO Meeting, Hyatt Hotel, Canberra

INFORMATION AND ALLIANCES

Around Australia, NDS issued 538 News Updates
during the year, alerting members to regulatory
changes, policy consultations, professional
development forums, funding opportunities and key
reports. NDS's re-developed website (with improved
search functions, accessible information and modern
design) was launched.

NDS is a founding member of the National Disability
and Carer Alliance, which includes the peak national
associations for people with disability and family
carers. The Alliance meets regularly, with promoting
the NDIS as its primary goal.

NDS convenes the Sensory Disability Forum to
assist organisations with an interest in blindness
and deafness issues in developing common
priorities and work in concert. NDS's relationship
with the Australian Blindness Forum continued as
a mechanism enabling NDS to connect with and
promote issues of importance to the blindness and
low-vision sector.

The National Roundtable of Non-profit Organisations,
of which NDS is a founding member, focused on
promoting the Productivity Commission’s seminal
report into the not-for-profit sector.

NDS is also a member of the Australian Tax Office’s
Charities Consultative Committee, a key source of
advice for the ATO on not-for-profit issues.

With the assistance of Diversity@Work, NDS
developed and adopted a Disability Action Plan. It was
developed to ensure that NDS's practices across the
organisation are aligned with its mission to improve
access and opportunities for people with disability.

MEMBERS AND STAFF

Membership grew during the year. Members and
associates now total 800, compared with 780 in
2008-09, and 640 five years ago.

NDS relies extensively on members’ participation

in its governance structure and policy formation
processes. The eight state and territory committees,
which help ensure that NDS is responsive to local
priorities, include more than 90 representatives.
NDS's national board includes the eight state and
territory chairs and an additional six directly-elected
members. National committees, which advise on
policy, link to state-based policy sub-committees

or networks. In some states, regional meetings
enhance the flow of information to and from
members. In all, this structure supports a robust
system of governance and consultation, which
strengthens NDS. We are thankful to members

for their willingness to assist NDS with their skills
and experience.

“DS Issued 538 News Updates during the year, alerting
members to regulatory changes, policy consultations, professional
development forums, funding opportunities and key repo’,
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Across all its offices, NDS employs more than 70
staff members to implement its strategic directions
and priorities and to manage its projects. Their
considerable commitment, initiative and skill are a
great asset to NDS.

FINANCES AND GOVERNANCE

NDS ends the year with a healthy surplus, with the
NSW Division the main contributor to this surplus.
The company has a strong cash position, although
most of the cash held is unexpended project income.

Government projects have been the principal source
of NDS’s growth over recent years. In the year ahead,
an estimated 65% of NDS’s income will come from
this source. Among these projects are:

e the Companion Card Project in WA and NSW

e Disability Safe (occupational health and safety] in
Victoria and NSW

e the Disability Parking Scheme in WA
e carecareers (workforce recruitment) in NSW

e quality improvement projects in Queensland, the
Northern Territory and Victoria

e improved engagement of Aboriginal people with
disability services

e governance training in several states and
territories.

With the growth of NDS's income, staffing and
projects over the past several years, the board’s
focus on risk management has increased. In
revising NDS's Strategic Plan in 2010, the board
emphasised the importance of effective internal
systems and procedures in areas such as finance
and HR. It instigated a Financial Management,
Reporting and Treasury Review undertaken by board
member and CPA Fellow Max Dyason. The review
recommended a range of improvements, which NDS
is implementing.

The board commenced a review of Divisional
Governance Policies, with the aim of clarifying
the powers and responsibilities of state/territory

committees. This review will be completed early
in 2011.

The board also endorsed changes to NDS's
organisational structure, including the expansion of
the Chief Operating Officer’s role. The changes will
help NDS manage its increased policy workload,
allow greater focus on operational requirements
and respond to the opportunity presented by project
growth in some state divisions to build capacity
across the organisation.
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NDS is grateful for the support it receives from the
Australian Government and all state and territory
governments. This funding assists NDS to develop
sound policy advice, provide relevant information to
service providers, and assist the sector to build its
capacity and improve services to people with disability.

(o (el
Ken Baker
Chief Executive

7 Dalo..

Tim Walton
President

From Left: The Hon. Bill Shorten MP, Parliamentary Secretary
for Disabilities & Children’s Services, Tony Lund, NDS President,
Tracey Fellows, Managing Director, Microsoft Australia, and Ken
Baker, Chief Executive, NDS at the 2009 Workability International
and NDS Employment Forum.

““ﬁbership grew during the year. Members and
assoclates now total 800, compared with 780 in
2008-09, and 640 five years a,,
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NDS STRATEGIC
DIRECTIONS 2007-2011

1. EQUIP MEMBERS TO ADAPT TO THE
NEW WORLD

Disability service providers face a demanding future:
a rising tide of regulations, intensifying competition,
increased accountability and reporting requirements
from governments. The financial pressure on
organisations is increasing, placing at risk their
ongoing viability.

To survive, or indeed thrive, in this complex world,
service providers require systems to collect and
manage data; skills in preparing tenders and
identifying evidence of outcomes; sound internal
auditing systems, and well-developed business
planning and financial skills. They have to make
astute judgements about the optimal structure and
configuration of their organisation.

Service providers need to work out how to comply
with stringent obligations regarding occupational
health and safety without compromising their
mission to expand the opportunities and choices
available to people with disability.

The rise of individualised funding is driven by
attractive values such as consumer choice

and personal empowerment; but the design,
implementation and management of individualised
funding models - depending on which version is
chosen - raise complex and contentious issues.

ACTIONS IN 2010 -2011:
1. NDS will continue to support Members by:

a. informing members about this new world

b. assisting members with skills and strategies to
achieve sustainability

c. influencing governments to reduce red tape and
implement funding models that fully reflect the
cost of service delivery, including compliance

2. IDENTIFY AND RESPOND TO THE
UNMET NEED AND CHANGING
DEMAND FOR DISABILITY SERVICES

The disability services system is under severe

strain. Every jurisdiction has queues for disability
services, including accommodation support, respite,
community access, therapy, employment and
assistive technology. Accelerating and re-shaping the
demand for services are factors such as: population
ageing, the growing prevalence of autism, increasing
recognition of the rights of people with disability; and
changing community expectations about the role of
government.

The growing interest in a National Disability
Insurance Scheme, which NDS has helped
promote, presents a major opportunity to secure
the fundamental system changes that are needed.
Realising this opportunity will require a large,
coordinated and sustained effort.

ACTIONS IN 2010 -2011:

2. NDS will strongly support the development of a
national scheme which would provide equitable
no-fault entitlement to disability services for all
Australians who require long-term support.

3. NDS will promote the continued expansion of non-
government disability services because they are
generally more efficient, responsive and mission-
driven than government services.

4. NDS will seek funding formulae from government
that reflect the changing needs of clients

3. RESPOND TO WORKFORCE
DEVELOPMENT, RECRUITMENT AND
RETENTION ISSUES

Across the disability sector, service providers have
difficulty recruiting and retaining appropriately
qualified staff. Contributing to the shortage are the
low public awareness of careers in disability services
and the availability of more generous employment
conditions among government-owned disability
services. At the same time, more complex skills

are required from disability support workers as
service models and philosophies evolve. Rather than
just providing personal care, workers now support
individuals in managing personal relationships,

in creating and pursuing their own goals in the
community, in learning empowerment skills, and in
managing challenging behaviours.
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Staff quality is the most important determinant

of service quality and should thus be a matter of
interest to all stakeholders. Traditionally, investment
in skills development in the cash-strapped disability
sector has been low, but the demand for training

and professional development to equip workers with
relevant skills is growing.

ACTIONS IN 2010 -2011:

5. NDS will drive the workforce agenda with
governments, including a continued close
engagement with the development of the National
Disability Workforce Strategy.

4. REDUCE CROSS-PROGRAM
BARRIERS THAT PREVENT SERVICES
FROM RESPONDING TO THE NEEDS
OF PEOPLE WITH DISABILITY.

Bureaucratic and jurisdictional boundaries are
barriers for people with disability whose service
needs are complex or alter as they reach a new life
stage. These barriers adversely affect people ageing
in group homes unable to access community aged
care programs. They affect people moving from
school to employment. They affect people wishing to
retire from supported employment.

Commitments in the 2002-07 CSTDA to improve
linkages across government programs and access
to generic services delivered little. The new National
Disability Agreement includes a commitment, which
NDS helped secure, to make community aged care
package funding available to people ageing in group
homes. The development of a National Disability
Strategy provides an opportunity to advance a whole-
of-government perspective.

As the only organisation that represents the broad
spectrum of service providers at national and state
levels, NDS is uniquely placed to negotiate across
programs and levels of government to find solutions
to cross-program barriers.

ACTIONS IN 2010 -2011:

6. NDS will continue to work at finding solutions to
reduce cross program barriers, including through
influencing the development of the National
Disability Strategy

5. PROMOTE SERVICE IMPROVEMENT
THROUGH PROMOTING RESEARCH
AND DISSEMINATING RESEARCH
FINDINGS

Governments invest little in disability research.
The third CSTDA committed governments to spend
collectively only $400,000 a year on research and
development. NDS sought and welcomed the
increase in research funding which Ministers
announced in March 2008.
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Good research and reliable data are needed to drive
service development and improvement, and to inform
budgetary planning. NDS is not a research institute,
but can influence or partner with professional
research bodies to initiate research projects that will
enhance the quality of service provision and convince
governments that their funding purchases cost-
effective and valuable outcomes.

ACTIONS IN 2010 -2011:

7. NDS will engage with stakeholders to develop
a national disability research agenda that is
responsive to the needs of the sector.

6. BE SEEN AS THE PEAK VOICE FOR
DISABILITY SERVICE PROVIDERS

To achieve the above strategic actions NDS needs
to be recognized by governments and others as the
peak voice for disability service providers.

ACTIONS IN 2010 -2011:

8. NDS will continue to position itself as the leading
non-government voice on disability service issues
- an essential source of advice for both state and
federal governments, MPs, media and peak bodies
in allied fields. NDS will be seen as authoritative,
reasonable and progressive in:

a. regular engagement with governments;

b. responding through the media to issues as they
arise; and

c. promoting disability issues in the public arena
where resources allow.
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7. BUILD NDS’S CAPACITY,
CONSISTENCY AND SUSTAINABILITY

A diversity of income sources is an important
foundation for NDS's independence. Income from
government, particularly project income, has grown
in recent years. Some security lies in the fact that
the sources of government funding for NDS are
diverse, involving eight governments and many
discrete projects. However, projects are time-limited,
which presents the challenge of how to sustain
their benefits when government funding ends; and
they require good management skills to ensure that
expectations are met and budgets are managed.

To position itself effectively as a strong, influential
and consistent voice for disability services, NDS
must function effectively and efficiently as a national
organisation. NDS will ensure that its governance
arrangements, its structures, its systems and
processes, its exchange of information across offices
and its utilisation of staff skills enable this to be
achieved.

ACTIONS IN 2010 -2011:

9. NDS will further improve its financial
sustainability by broadening its funding base

10. NDS will ensure it is functionally and structurally
sound by reviewing its governance policies and
the implications for organizational structure

11. NDS will improve the effectiveness and efficiency
of its processes and systems by reviewing and
improving the standards and integration of its
Financial, HR, Risk Management, Quality and
Communication systems

12. NDS will review its capability for developing and
managing ongoing commercial projects and
businesses.
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ABOUT NDS

National Disability Services is the peak industry
body for non-government disability services. Its
purpose is to promote and advance services for
people with disability. Its represents 700 non-
government organisations, which collectively
support people with all forms of disability. NDS’s
members range in size from small support groups
to large multi-service organisations, and are
located in every state and territory across Australia.

NDS has a national office in Canberra and offices

in every state and territory. The organisation, as a
whole, is governed by a board which includes the
elected chair from each state and territory, as well as
representatives elected directly by members.

Formerly ACROD, NDS can trace its roots back for
more than 60 years. In 1945, state and territory
bodies formed the Australian Advisory Council for
the Physically Handicapped to assist with national
coordination. In 1963, in response to disability service
providers’ realisation that they had many common
interests regardless of the particular group they
served, the Australian Council for the Rehabilitation
of the Disabled was established. This evolved into
ACROD which, in early 2007, became National
Disability Services to provide a strong inclusive and
enlightened voice for disability service providers from
across Australia.

Information

Given the complex challenges confronting the
disability sector, up-to-date information is an
essential resource for service managers. NDS's
members receive a flow of timely information

and analysis regarding not only government
policies, programs and funding contracts, but also
service delivery and management issues such as
governance, risk, quality assurance and fund raising.
Members receive information via publications, state
forums, national conferences and issues-based
committees and networks.

Policy influence

NDS provides a robust, independent and rational
voice to governments—federal, state and territory—
on behalf of disability service providers. NDS

bases its positions on consultation with members,
supported by research and argument. Through
NDS, members have an opportunity to influence
government policy.

Networking

NDS provides members with opportunities to meet
each other, exchange information and, if they
wish, form mentoring relationships or business
partnerships. NDS networks foster service
improvement.

Corporate relationships

NDS is establishing corporate relationships which
offer exclusive member benefits. These are being

developed to assist our members and the services
they provide.

dNO NOIL1J3S
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NDS BOARD

President
(Current)

President
(Previous)

Vice-President
(Current)

Vice-President
(Previous)

Chief Executive
Company Secretary

Auditor

Tim Walton, Elected Member (from December 2009)
Chief Executive Officer, Australian Foundation for Disability

Tony Lund, Chairperson NSW Division (until December 2009)
Chief Executive, Disability Services Australia

Diana Heggie, Elected Member (from December 09)
Chief Executive Officer, SCOPE (Vic] Ltd

Lynn Quirk, Elected Member (Vice-President until December 2009)
Chief Executive Officer, Connect2Group Inc.

Liz Bishop, Elected Member
Chief Executive Officer, St John of God ACCORD

Peter Callaghan, Chairperson QLD Division
Chief Executive Officer, Community Solutions Inc.

Kirsty Carter, Chairperson NT Division
Executive Director, Top End Association for Mental Health Inc.

David Coe, Chairperson TAS Division (until September 2009)
Manager Corporate Services, Oak Tasmania

Richard Dent, Chairperson VIC Division
Chief Executive Officer, EXW. Tipping Foundation

Max Dyason, Chairperson SA Division (from September 2009)
Chief Executive, Bedford

Sue Healy, Chairperson ACT Division
Executive Director, Sharing Places

Joan McKenna-Kerr, Chairperson WA Division
Chief Executive Officer, Autism Association of Western Australia

Anthony Putt, Elected Member
Chief Executive Officer, Central Access Limited

Glenn Rappensberg, Chairperson SA Division (until September 2009)
Chief Executive, Novita Children’s Services

Andrew Richardson, Elected Member
Chief Executive Officer, The Wheelchair and Disabled Association of Australia

Gordon Trewern, Chairperson WA Division (until October 2009)
Elected Member (from November 2009)
Chief Executive Officer, Nulsen

Dale Luttrell, Chairperson TAS Division (from September 2009)
Chief Executive Officer, Eskleigh Foundation Inc.

Ken Baker
Ken Baker, Chief Executive, NDS

Ascent
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Liz Bishop Peter Callaghan Kirsty Carter David Coe

Richard Dent Max Dyason Susan Healy Joan McKenna-Kerr

Anthony Putt Glenn Rappensburg Andrew Richardson Gordon Trewern

Dale Luttrell
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NDS NATIONAL COMMITTEES

NDS’s national committees provide advice to the Chief Executive on relevant policy matters. This information
is then channelled through the Chief Executive to the NDS Board.

They also facilitate information exchange among NDS’s members and monitor developments within states
and territories in order to identify common trends, service innovation and nationally significant issues.

The national committees, with their corresponding Chairperson and NDS Representative, are as follows:

NATIONAL COMMITTEE ON ACCOMMODATION

Committee Chair

Darren Ginnelly
Chief Executive

My Place Foundation

NDS Representative

Monique Williamson
Manager, Policy
NDS Western Australia

NATIONAL COMMITTEE ON AGEING AND DISABILITY

Committee Chair

Diana Heggie
Chief Executive Officer
SCOPE (Vic) Ltd

NDS Representative
Philippa Angley
National Policy Manager
NDS National

NATIONAL COMMITTEE ON AUSTRALIAN DISABILITY ENTERPRISES

Committee Chair

Robert Styling AFSM
General Manager Human Resources

Phoenix Society Inc

NDS Representative

Paul Musso
Policy Advisor
NDS National

NATIONAL COMMITTEE ON CHILDREN, YOUNG PEOPLE AND THEIR FAMILIES

Committee Chair

Glenn Rappensberg
Chief Executive

Novita Children's Services

NDS Representative

Annemarie Ashton
Policy Officer
NDS National

NATIONAL COMMITTEE ON OCCUPATIONAL HEALTH AND SAFETY

Committee Chair

Phil Farrow
General Manager, Government and Sector Relations

Bedford Industries Inc

NDS Representative

Susan Smith
Project Manager Disability Safe
NDS New South Wales
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NATIONAL COMMITTEE ON OPEN EMPLOYMENT

Committee Chair NDS Representative

Kerrie Langford Jennifer Kitchin

Chief Executive Officer Senior Policy Advisor

Advance Personnel NDS National (-mn
(@)

NATIONAL COMMITTEE ON SOCIAL PARTICIPATION g

Committee Chair NDS Representative g

Grant Vukasinovic Philippa Angley %

Programs Manager National Policy Manager

Greenacres Disability Services NDS National

NATIONAL WORKFORCE COMMITTEE

Committee Chair NDS Representative
Marsha Sheridan Valmae Rose
Director State Manager
Synthesize Consultancy NDS Queensland

L=

Senator the Hon Mark Arbib, Minister for Employment Participation addressing the 2009 Workability International and Employment
Forum conference
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SENIOR MANAGEMENT TEAM

Ken Baker Chief Executive

Patrick Maher Chief Operating Officer

EXECUTIVE SUPPORT

Rebecca Gardner Personal Assistant to the
Chief Executive and National
Office Manager

(until December 2009)

Personal Assistant to the
Chief Executive and National
Office Manager

(from January 2010)

Catherine Jones

POLICY

Philippa Angley National Policy Manager

Jennifer Kitchin Senior Policy Adviser

ABF Project Officer
(until February 2010)

ABF Project Officer
(from March 2010]

Margaret Verick

Annemarie Ashton

Paul Musso Policy Advisor, Australian
Disability Enterprises
Margaret Gadd Asia Pacific Project Officer

HUMAN RESOURCES

Jeannette Kruk Human Resources Manager

FINANCE

Craig Rudd Financial Controller

(until March 2010)

Frank Benito de Valle Acting Financial Controller

(from February 2010)
Aphrodite loannou Accounts Assistant

Accounts Clerk
(from May 2010)

Genevieve Bartlett

MEMBERSHIP

Emerson Riley Membership Services Officer

CONFERENCE MANAGEMENT UNIT

Julie Walton National Events and

Conference Manager

Administration and Events
Coordinator

Sarah Maguire

National Staff from left, Paul Musso, Frank Benito de Valle, Jeannette Kurk, Patrick Maher, Ken Baker, Annemarie Ashton and
Sarah Maguire. Absent: Philippa Angley, Julie Walton, Rebecca Gardner, Emerson Riley, Margaret Gadd, Jennifer Kitchin, Margaret Verick,

Louise Gray, Catherine Jones.
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STATE AND TERRITORY COMMITTEES

AUSTRALIAN CAPITAL TERRITORY

Chair
Vice-Chair

Committee Members

ACT Manager

Project Officer

Sue Healy
Kerrie Langford

Maureen Cane
Paula Chemello
Jacinta Cummins
Miranda Garnett
Hilary Martin
Cheryl Pollard
Tina Siver

Eric Thauvette
Louise Gray [until May 2010)

Rebecca Gardner
(until June 2010)

NEW SOUTH WALES

Chair Tony Lund
(until December 2009)
Tim Walton

Vice-Chair

Committee Members

NSW Manager

(from December 2009)
Andrew Richardson

Max Bosotti
Anne Bryce
David Hogg
Pennie Kearney
Hugh Packard
Neil Preston
Allan Young
Rob White
Adrian Ford

Patrick Maher

NORTHERN TERRITORY

Chair
Vice-Chair

Committee Members

NT Manager
QUEENSLAND
Chair

Vice-Chair
Executive
Executive

Committee Members

QLD Manager
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Kirsty Carter
Vicki O'Halloran

Penny Fleming
Peter Joyce
Greg McMahon
Elizabeth Reid
Joseph Smith
Jenny Upton

Peter Callaghan

Mark Henley

Joanne Jessop

Judy Mayfield

David Barbagallo
(from September 2009)
Kaye Deeley

Judy Dickson

Robert Evelyn

Lynn Quirk

Angela Tillmanns

Pat Thompson
(until February 2010)

Bev Watkinson

Valmae Rose

19
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SOUTH AUSTRALIA

Chair Max Dyason
(from September 2009)
Glenn Rappensberg
(until August 2009)
Vice-Chair Greg Box

Committee Members Geoff Blackwood
Paul Creedon
Judy Curran
Aileen Dawson
Robert Depold

Michael Forwood

Deb McGrath (from March
2010 to April 2010)

Susan Mclnerney
(until November 2010)

Jon Martin (from April 2010)
Nick Mihalaras
Cathy Miller (from June 2010)

John Simpson

SA Manager Noelene Wadham
TASMANIA

Chair Dale Luttrell
Vice-Chair Paul Byrne
Committee Members Donna Bain

Deborah Byrne
Steve Daly

Rhonda Duharte
Karen Frost
Geraldine Harwood
Kevin Kreiner
Darryl Lamb
Janette Martin
Paul Mayne

Michael Sertori
(until February 2010)

Darryleen Wiggins

TAS Manager Margaret Reynolds

VICTORIA
Chair

Vice-Chair

Committee Members

Richard Dent
Liz Bishop
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POLICY ADVICE AND CONSULTATION

NDS ACT continued to be proactive in driving
collaboration and the development of policies to
assist the disability sector. This was achieved through
discussion within the sector and with government, to
facilitate better outcomes for members through their
operations and the services that they delivered to
their clients.

NDS ACT was represented at a number of ACT
Legislative Assembly Inquiry hearings, such as

the Inquiry into Public Accounts, the Inquiry into
Respite Services and the Inquiry into the Needs of
Students with Disability. Submissions were lodged in
a number of areas including the ACT Strategic Plan
for Positive Ageing, the ACT Social Hub Progress
and the Shaddock Report about special education in
government and non-government schools.

NDS ACT was a member of the steering committee
about supported accommodation for people with

high and complex needs. We also participated in the
ACT Government'’s review of the Individual Support
Plan which included the development of models for
managing funding packages and assessment of value
for money in the costs of administration.

NDS ACT, as part of the ACT Disability Workforce
Group, piloted the application of the NDS National
Workforce Project outputs. We also participated in
focus groups of the ACT Government’s Review of
Industrial Relations.

NDS ACT was also represented on ACT Government
working parties and advisory groups such as the
Interagency Transition Committee and the Disability
Education Reference Group.

NDS ACT continued to co-chair, with Disability ACT,
the Disability Service Providers’ Forum.

INFORMATION

The professional development of members remained
a strong focus for NDS ACT, and a number of
information sessions and forums were held. These
included Ageing and Disability Access to Support/
Transitions and Accommmodation, Get to Know Your
Sector, Accommodation Issues in the ACT, Developing
and Defining our Workforce, Vulnerable People
Checks, Risk Management, How to Write Successful
Tenders, Portable Long Service Leave Issues,
Planning for Emergency Evacuations and the National
Disability Insurance Scheme, and an industry briefing
on Qutcomes Based Funding Models.

Professional development training, including the
strategic roles of a peak committee, was provided for
members of the NDS ACT Committee by Ms Carol
Flynn. These sessions have been of great benefit to
committee members.

NDS ACT members represented the membership
on NDS National Committees for, Accommodation,
Ageing and Disability, Australian Disability
Enterprises, Children, Young People and Their
families, and Open Employment, Social participation
and Work-Force.

PROJECTS

The Strengthening the Sector Project was completed.
As part of this project, NDS ACT developed and
issued a Better Practice Guide which incorporated

a range of key corporate and governance functions
including risk management, planning, human
resources, governance and financial management.
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The ACT Government made note of the Doug to upgrade his qualifications to enable him to

recommendations of the Strengthening the Sector expand his horticultural training support to people

Project Report, particularly concerning the rollout of with disability in the ACT. The official award ceremony

the Service Plan developed through the project. Use will take place in August. NDS ACT looks forward to

of the Service Plan tool in the future will assist in receiving an increased number of applications for the

enabling early analysis of disability service demand, Joan Berry Scholarship in 2011.

capacity and case management. It will also assist

with the management of service demand and enable ~ For the future, NDS ACT is seeking to work with the

service providers to develop evidence-based costing. Department of Disability, Housing and Community
Services on a project about managing the growing

The 2010 NDS Joan Berry Scholarship was awarded demand for disability services.

to Douglas Humbert of LEAD. The funding will allow

OML NOILJ3S

From left: Susan Healy (ACT Chair) and Louise Gray (ACT Manager)

‘)‘ve future, NDS ACT Is seeking to work with the Department
of Disability, Housing and Community Services on a project about

managing the growing demand for disability ser”
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Tim Walton, Chair

NEW SOUTH WALES

2009-10 marks a year of significant growth for
NDS NSW. Such growth is not possible without

a strong foundation and proven success in both
policy and projects—two key platforms from which
NDS NSW has excelled over the past 12 months.
Working closely with the sector and in partnership
with the NSW Minister for Disability Services,
Ageing, Disability and Home Care (ADHC) and the
Department of Human Services, NDS NSW has
played a pivotal role in building the capacity of
disability services. The ultimate aim of supporting
a strong and diverse sector is to achieve quality

outcomes for people with disability and their families,

both now and into the future.

POLICY, ADVICE, INFLUENCE

NDS NSW has invested in its policy team over the
past 12 months, which has led to the development
of numerous policy positions and has influenced the
direction of government policies and programs.

In 2009-10, NDS NSW was represented on more than
40 reference groups and working parties, providing
high level advice to government. These included

the Premier’s roundtable on Stronger Together, the
Community Services Service System Advisory Group
for Keep Them Safe, the Department of Education
and Training roundtable on the Australian Early
Development Index, and the NSW Ombudsman’s
roundtable on probity. In addition, NDS NSW provides
high level advice to ADHC on behalf of the sector
about an array of issues including quality reform,

NDS’s eight subcommittees in NSW provide a strong
platform to advise the state manager, from which
many policy positions and papers are developed.
NSW member input over the past year continued

to play a key role in influencing national policies
through the NDS committee structure. In addition,
NDS NSW continues to convene member roundtables
on critical issues including child protection,
hospitalisation of people with disability, transition to
work programs and the self-managed model.

The nine NDS NSW quarterly regional meetings
continued to be a success, with a greater emphasis
placed on maximising participation of members
and encouraging the amalgamation of consultative
processes with our regional meetings.

PROJECT SUCCESS

The growth in NDS NSW projects in recent years
has been significant, enabling us to attract an
expansion of income from government. This year
has been no exception, with many milestones
achieved across all projects providing the sector
with substantial benefits.

Initial projects funded by the Industry Development
Fund have commenced, including the extension and
expansion of the innovative Aboriginal Resources
and Pathways Project as well as the extension of the
highly successful Disability Safe Project.

To assist the sector in attracting, recruiting and
retaining staff, the Workforce Recruitment Project
achieved significant milestones during 2009-10.
These include the successful launch of a sector
employment brand—carecareers; a dedicated
careers advisory and talent management service; an
award winning multi-media campaign, television
program and PR campaign; a highly engaging
schools and university project; and a web portal,
community hub and jobs board supporting job
seekers, existing sector hires and employers.

These activities have enabled carecareers to assist
more than 720 NSW employers, post more than
2,100 vacancies from frontline support to corporate
management roles, process more than 6,500 job
applications, attract 4,000 individuals to join its
sector talent pool and inspire over 185,000 people
to discover more about a care career. Given these
successes and the opportunity for carecareers to
improve sector workforce outcomes, the Workforce
Recruitment Project has received additional ADHC
funding for 2010-12.
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Building the capacity of the service system is a key
focus of the projects that NDS NSW has carriage
of. Identifying and supporting best practice is the
cornerstone of the Good Governance Project. Based
on the ‘It's Your Business’ manual developed by
ADHC, this project is developing the skills and
knowledge of boards and CEOs around critical
governance issues, through regional forums

and access to subject matter experts for tailored
consultancy support.

Since its launch in March 2008, just over 5,000
people have been issued with a Companion Card in
NSW. The participation and inclusion of people with
disability in the community is the centrepiece of
much of NDS NSW's work, with the Companion Card
Project proving to be a highly successful mechanism
in achieving this for people with severe, profound
and lifelong disability who require support to access
their community.

ONE STRONG VOICE

NDS NSW proudly forms part of the national NDS
structure, working closely with our national, state

and territory colleagues to improve the quality of
services for people with disability and their families
across the country. Sharing opportunities and
expertise across all jurisdictions is achieving greater
outcomes for our members.

The number of staff members at NDS NSW has
grown significantly over the past year, bringing

with it an expansion of knowledge, expertise and
commitment. NDS NSW relies heavily on its staff to
implement strategic directions and priorities, and the
quality of these people is to be applauded.

In looking to the year ahead, the key priorities for
NDS NSW and the sector include the government’s
commitment to the second five-year phase of
Stronger Together, funded SACS Award increases,
and working for a viable, equitable and sustainable
service system across issues such as packaged
support, respite services and sector development.

NDS NSW welcomes the challenges that lie
ahead and looks forward to continuing to work in
partnership with members and government.

From left: Jane Johnstone, Katherine McLellan, Rhonda Yanitsas (Prentice), Gail Day, Kieren Purnell, Megan Sandford, John Gilroy,
Patrick Maher, Anna La, Neil Murrell, Rhonda Crisp, Ross Mitchell, Jeffrey Tonge, Melissa Doyle, Paul Musso, Sue Smith, Kate More,
Jean-Ann Jones, Amy Wang, Gordon Duff, Zoe Brissett, Emily Caska and Joanne Scott. Absent: Amy Wang, Berice King, Kylie Warner
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NORTHERN TERRITORY

Kirsty Carter, Chair

INTRODUCTION

A major achievement of the 2009-10 financial year
was the consolidation of NDS NT's presence with
member organisations, the broader disability sector,
local communities and the Northern Territory
Government. Regular visits to regional centres

were undertaken by NDS NT staff to strengthen
engagement with disability service providers and
people with disability in rural and remote areas.

ADVICE TO GOVERNMENT ON POLICY
AND SERVICE DELIVERY

NDS NT has influenced the Northern Territory
Government through its contribution to legislative
reform and policy development. During 2009-10
NDS NT responded to the ‘Review of Adult
Guardianship in the Northern Territory” discussion
paper, accepted a position on the working party to
develop the Department of Health and Families’
(DHF) "Engagement Strategy with External
Providers’ and attended regular meetings with
government officers. NDS NT also provided advice
to DHF on a regular basis on those broader
emerging issues identified through work related to
the Quality Framework Project.

CONSULTATION AND REPRESENTATION
WITH NDS NT MEMBERS

The restructure of the NDS NT Committee
resulted in a more streamlined approach to the
management of strategic issues, particularly
those linked to the national disability reform

agenda. While the NDS NT membership pool is
small compared with larger jurisdictions, the
increasing enthusiasm and professionalism of
members in tackling local issues and bringing a
territory perspective to national forums, gathered
momentum and will continue to strengthen.

NDS NT members who have participated in the
Quality Framework Project have been an invaluable
source of information regarding the challenges
associated with the implementation of a quality
system within a complex environment. Member input
has confirmed that factors such as organisational
size, location, cultural imperatives and multiple
funding sources will require a very flexible and
collaborative approach to quality improvement.

NDS NT membership is increasing as the value of
the work undertaken by NDS NT is recognised by
service providers across the Northern Territory.

INFORMATION AND NETWORKING

NDS NT staff was actively involved in the working
party to develop the 2009 NT Disability Awareness
Week program. The theme for the week, 'Celebrating
Ability and Inclusion’, was demonstrated through

a range of events including the showcasing of
employment opportunities, arts, crafts, drama,
horticulture, sport and recreation. A highlight of the
week was an outdoor radio broadcast that included
interviews with both people with disability and
service providers.

NDS NT regional forums were introduced in 2010

as a means of disseminating information and
encouraging networking within the sector. Forums

in Darwin, Katherine and Alice Springs have been
very successful with increased numbers of NDS NT
members, disability service providers and community
members recognising the value of attendance.
Service providers will be consulted on ideas for
presentations for 2011 regional forums through a
survey to be conducted late in 2010.

NDS NT has pursued opportunities with other
peak bodies and service providers to work together
on the presentation of information relevant to

the community sector. NDS NT joined forces with
NTCOSS and the NT Chamber of Commerce to
present two highly successful information sessions
on award modernisation in Darwin and Alice
Springs in May 2010. NDS NT will continue to

seek opportunities to work with peak bodies and
organisations to deliver cost effective information
and training sessions across the territory.
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PROJECTS

NDS NT signed a three-year funding agreement
with the Department of Health and Families (DHF)
in 2008-09 to develop a quality framework for
government and non-government services funded
under the National Disability Agreement (NDAJ.
The project is supported by a steering committee
comprising representatives from NDS NT, disability
service organisations, the community and DHF.

Project activity in 2009-10 included:

e a survey of quality systems currently used by
disability service providers. The survey included an
online questionnaire and individual interviews and
resulted in an 80% return rate

e 3 desktop review of quality systems used by
service providers who have a high Indigenous
consumer base

e 3 literature review, complemented by visits to
selected jurisdictions, to investigate quality
frameworks.

Research findings provided a sound basis for the
development of a quality framework for NDA funded
organisations in the Northern Territory that will:

e employ a strong developmental and collaborative
approach in all facets of its implementation

e respond and reflect sector views

¢ build a quality culture that establishes a foundation

which reflects anticipated national, state and
territory quality benchmarks

e be underpinned by DHF's Aged and Disability
Program principles and relevant NT Government
policy and direction

¢ acknowledge the need to cut red tape’ through
the mutual recognition of existing quality
management systems

e promote best practice and expertise through
the fostering of networking and sharing of ideas
between service providers

e recognise the need for increased effort in the

Targeted sector development is an important
element of the project. Service providers in Darwin
and Alice Springs undertook training in the areas of
risk management, behaviour support management
and financial management.

Sector development activity will continue in
2010-11 and will include "Person Centred Thinking’
workshops, a ‘Good Governance Survey’ of boards
of management, and presentations on quality
improvement and quality management systems.
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At the close of the 2009-10 financial year pilot

sites were under development. Organisations
representative of the diversity of the Northern Territory
disability sector will trial a quality improvement tool

to determine the capacity and resources required

to successfully complete self-assessment against
recognised standards. The NDS NT Committee
members and staff wish to acknowledge colleagues in
the NDS NSW office for their continued support of the
Quality Framework Project.

NDS NT looks forward to an exciting year ahead
with the completion of the development phase of the
Quality Framework and increasing opportunities for
engagement with service providers and people with
disability across the territory.

engagement of client groups in service delivery and

service quality. From Left: Karen Giele and Jenny Upton

“ NT membership is increasing as the value of the

work undertaken by NDS NT is recognised by service
providers across the Northern Terri’,
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) Peter Callaghan,
Chair

ADVICE TO STATE GOVERNMENT ON
POLICY AND SERVICE DELIVERY

NDS QLD has been active in the provision of advice
to the state government across a range of matters
including:

e a 10-year plan for supporting Queenslanders
with disability

e regional service provider conversations with
the Minister

e restrictive practices legislation drafting and
implementation

e a common service agreement

e output based funding

e Growing Stronger reform agenda

e changes to criminal history processes and costs
e funding issues

e children’s services

e compliance issues

e workforce issues.

Provision of advice occurs through a range of
mechanisms, including:

e direct representation to Ministers and senior
officers of the Department of Communities
(Disability Services)

e representation to Director General and senior
officers of the Department of Communities at
quarterly whole of department meetings, and
Disability Partnership Forum

e representation on the Governance Committee for
the Queensland Compact.

CONSULTATION AND REPRESENTATION
WITH NDS MEMBERS AND BROADER
DISABILITY SECTOR

NDS QLD has actively sought input to policy positions
from its members around a number of issues and
made representation, both to government and other
stakeholders, to ensure service provider interests are
reflected and addressed.

Significant ground was made on negotiations
around a whole of department Common Service
Agreement and reimbursement of costs of Criminal
History Checking. Less ground was made, in spite
of significant input, to streamlining of the restrictive
practice regulatory framework and shifting from
supplementary to full cost funding arrangements.
Work will continue on both of these issues.

NDS QLD was also a key driver in the development
of the blue skies scenario - a broad-based vision for
an alternate future for people with disability, their
families and supporters in Queensland, which has
been influential in informing the development of the
10-year plan.

The work of the blue skies group has also informed
a Queensland based productivity commission
submission around a Long-term Care and Support
Scheme (National Disability Insurance Scheme).

Another significant piece of work for the year

has been the research and development of the
Economic Contribution of the Sector Report. NDS
has gathered a range of data relating to workforce
and the economic contribution of the sector to local
communities in an effort to highlight the contribution
of the sector at statewide and regional levels. For the
first time, the work also provided an estimate of the
number of people working in the disability sector in
Queensland. The information has been beneficial in
providing an understanding of the contribution of the
sector to the Queensland state economy.

We were assisted in this work by the Centre for
Philanthropy and Nonprofit Studies at QUT, and
the generosity of a number of service providers
who sponsored the purchase of a subscription for
an economic modelling tool which enabled the
calculation of the flow-on effects of the not-for-
profit disability sector to the broader community.
The not-for-profit disability sector represents
approximately one-third of the total community
services sector in Queensland.
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Finally, NDS QLD has been an active participant
on many reference groups, advisory bodies and
committees. Examples are as follows:

¢ NGO/DSQ Partnership Forum

e Centre of Excellence Advisory Committee

e Compact Governance Committee

e State Workforce Consultative Forum

e National NDS Workforce Committee

e Health Consumers Qld Reference Group

e Qld Health Clinician Performance Support Service

e Education QLD Non-Government Centres Support
(NSO Program) Reference Group

e Futures Forum

e Qld Health and Community Services
Workforce Council.

INFORMATION AND NETWORKING

NDS QLD has continued to focus on supporting good
practice in governance, continuous improvement and
contemporary service delivery. Strategies include
one-on-one support, small group workshops, and

the establishment and facilitation of a range of
communities of practice. A key example of this work
is the 30 Mob Project which targets service managers
from small to medium disability organisations,
including those operating in regional and remote
Queensland. This year, NDS was proud to accept a
Queensland Workforce Innovation Award for this work.

NDS QLD has also hosted a number of Quality Learning
and Development Network forums in Brisbane and
surrounding areas which bring service providers
together to discuss good practice quality system
implementation. These have provided participants

with the opportunity to embrace continuous quality
improvement through sharing resources, tools and
examples of contemporary practice.

To stimulate much needed debate around key policy
issues, NDS QLD has commenced monthly People,
Policy and Practice forums, all of which have been
well attended.

NDS QLD has maintained a strong website presence
to disseminate information on NDS activities and
the outcomes of these activities across the state.
YouTube and interactive forums have been trialled,
the most effective of which has been the NDS QLD
job board. NDS is in the process of rejuvenating

all websites and encourages organisations to take
advantage of the free online advertising of staff
vacancies available on www.disabilitywork.org.au.

PROJECTS

Since 2004, NDS QLD has been assisting
organisations with the implementation of the
Disability Services Quality System in Queensland.
This work will continue as part of the core business
of NDS Qld through sector development initiatives.

The Organisational Planning Project, which has
operated since 2006, was terminated at the end

of June 2010. This project provided support to
organisations to build strength in needs-based
planning and to address a range of issues relating
to compliance, leadership and sustainability. These
activities have been in response to needs identified
around planning processes, governance, relationship
with government, and quality certification. Elements
of this work will continue as part of sector
development activities.
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ACKNOWLEDGEMENTS

In conclusion, we acknowledge and thank all the
members of the NDS QLD Committee for their
contribution to the work of National Disability
Services at both state and national levels. We
acknowledge the significant contribution of the
Department of Communities — Disability Services to
the ongoing sustainability of NDS QLD.

We would also like to acknowledge the work of the
State Manager, Valmae Rose and staff members at
NDS QLD for their dedication and assistance. Finally,
a special 'thank you' to all NDS members across the
state for their support and commitment to providing
quality services to people with disability.

Valmae Rose, QLD Manager
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Max Dyason, Chair

SOUTH AUSTRALIA

This year the South Australia Division made a
conscious effort to seek solutions, to think outside
the square and adopt a positive approach to the many
challenges facing the disability sector in this state.

Proudly, we have done just that and it has paid off in
many ways. One of the most exciting developments
was the announcement by the Premier that he had
entrusted the Commissioner for Social Inclusion,
Monsignor David Cappo AO, with a reference to
develop a Blueprint for Disability Services in South
Australia. This was a direct result of NDS briefing the
commissioner on the state of the sector and the need
for ‘wholesale’ reform.

"..our vision encompasses long-term reform that
will support a better joined-up approach across
government, as well as promote parallel shifts in
community practice and attitudes. In essence it will
strengthen the rights of people with disability, make
communities more enabling and shift the focus
away from bureaucracies towards citizens. This is a
tremendous opportunity for us all. It is our chance to
deliver a reform plan that is about choice, dignity and
the rights of citizens.' (Monsignor David Cappo AO,
Commissioner for Social Inclusion SA)

History was made just a few months after the
announcement of the development of a blueprint,
when twenty-one-year old Kelly Vincent earned

a seat in the Legislative Council. Kelly is not only
the first person who uses a wheelchair elected to
the South Australian Parliament, she is the first
Australian parliamentarian elected on a disability
platform. NDS joined with other South Australians
to congratulate Kelly, and in doing so, gave pause to
honour Kelly's mentor and lead candidate, Dr Paul
Collier who passed away 11 days prior to the election.

For the first time in decades there has been an air
of anticipation—the disability agenda has received
unprecedented media attention and the sector has
made it known it is ready for transformation.

NDS reviewed its modus operandi to ensure it had
the correct avenues and contacts to influence the
higher levels of government which will be required to
support and implement the recommendations from
the blueprint. To date NDS has:

e provided a comprehensive election submission to
the Treasurer entitled A Case for Collaboration,
Reform and Investment which accentuated the
need for transparency and true partnerships
between the government and the non-
government sectors

Kelly Vincent MLC, the youngest and the first person with physical
disability elected to the South Australian Parliament, visits the
ADE Procurement Expo, May 2010.

‘i‘ar the South Australia Division made a conscious effort to seek
solutions, to think outside the square and adopt a positive approach to
the many challenges facing the disability sector in this,,
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e been invited by the Office of the Executive
Committee of Cabinet, Department of Premier and
Cabinet, to become a partner in South Australia’s
Strategic Plan Alliance Program. As a member,
NDS will be a key participant in the process to
update the next SA Strategic Plan 2011-2020

e provided a submission entitled The Five Key
Challenges for the Disability Sector in South
Australia to be included in the vision for SA towards
2020 and beyond

e strengthened its relationship with disability
representative organisation, Disability Alliance over
the past year by addressing issues and working
together on a number of projects. This ‘coming
together’ provides a strong and united voice for the
non-government disability sector.

NDS's presence on a number of pivotal state
government committees enabled first hand
briefings and input to government policy and
process. These included:

e the quarterly Human Services Peaks forums,
which are chaired in turn by the Chief Executive
Officers of the Department for Families and
Communities [DFC) and the Department of Health
(DoHJ. This year the peaks were given opportunities
to represent their members’ concerns about
the effects of award modernisation, the inequity

Ay

of training funding and opportunities between
government and non-government service providers,
the effectiveness and contribution of peak bodies,
the Self-Managed Funding Pilot Program, and the
Productivity Commission Report Contribution of the
Not-for-Profit Sector

the monthly Disability Sector Reference Group
meetings for which NDS sets the agenda. These
meetings are chaired by the Executive Director,
Office for Disability and Client Services and attended
by the Minister’s advisor on disability. This year NDS
spearheaded discussion on the impact on member
organisations of increased quality compliance and
evaluation, the value of partnership focus groups
conducted by DFC, the impact of the new Fair Work
legislation, the need for governance training for non-
government disability service providers, the DFC
Partnership Survey, administration fees and a review
of the costs involved in taking on a new service, and
the National Disability Standards consultations
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the Self-Managed Funding Consultative
Committee, which provides advice and makes
recommendations on the future development

of self management. This initiative has been
introduced this year, albeit cautiously, with

37 participants beginning their journey into
independence. Several NDS member organisations
have expressed interest in providing a brokerage
service for those who choose this path

L
i
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e the Disability SA Information Reference Group,
the role of which is to discuss, discover and
agree at a strategic level, methods to improve
communication. This has evolved into a web-based
one-stop-shop portal

e the Disability and Acute Working Party which
has, this year, produced a Memorandum of
Administrative Agreement between DFC, Disability
SA and the DoH which supports the funding of
non-government personal support workers for
hospitalised clients with disability.

In order to inform NDS’s input to other state and
federal government decision-making platforms,
member briefings and consultations were
conducted on:

e DFC’s People With Disability Decision-Making
and Consent Policy and Reporting of Incidents to
SAPOL Policy

e the review of the new Master Agreements and
Service Agreements which resulted in an increase
in the tenure of the Service Agreements from one
year to three years

* a submission to WorkCover on Access and Equity

e the implications of the Fair Work Act. Legal
firm Blake Dawson who, on behalf of FaHCSIA,
presented a comprehensive overview to
representatives from 25 NDS SA member
organisations

e the Productivity Commission’s issues paper
Disability Care and Support. NDS SA hosted
a forum for representatives of 30 member
organisations who emphasised a commitment to
a National Disability Insurance Scheme.

NDS SA and the state government continued
their partnership in the Companion Card Project.

From left: Emma Coombes, Noelene Wadham, Chanelle Donaldson

“y this year, NDS SA hosted an Expo of Australian Disability
Enterprises (ADEs) to which all people involved with procurement
within the state and local governments were IF”
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Although there was a considerable reduction in
funding for 2009-10, which only enabled nine

hours a week for one person, a constant growth

in the number of affiliates and cardholders was
experienced. There are now 2,666 Companion Card
holders and 230 affiliated events and venues offering
free entry to companions in SA.

In May this year, NDS SA hosted an Expo of
Australian Disability Enterprises (ADEs) to which
all people involved with procurement within the
state and local governments were invited. The
expo, which saw 11 of the 12 SA ADEs exhibit
their services and wares, was the first of its kind
for NDS. It provided exhibitors the opportunity to
secure valuable government procurement contacts
and galvanised a relationship between NDS SA,
the State Procurement Board and the Local
Government Association.

Workforce attraction, recruitment, retention and
career development continued as key issues for
our membership this year. As no new funding was
forthcoming to assist non-government service
providers address business continuity, NDS sought
a number of initiatives which enabled members to
be briefed and trained on contemporary workforce
issues including:

e two full-day workshops on Personal Safety and
Managing Conflict Situations

e two workshops on Continuous Improvement Tools

e the final two full-day workshops on Building
Business Capability in Workforce Development

e presentation on Emerging Global Trends for Not-
for-Profit Organisations

e completion of membership survey to inform
development of a Disability Sector Training and
Development Calendar 2010-11

e provision to members seeking board directors
with opportunities extended by the Australian
Institute of Company Directors to meet with
potential board directors through the AICD
Emerging Directors Series.

A number of these events were provided
complementarily and NDS expresses its gratitude to
those facilitators for generously sharing their time
and expertise.

NDS SA member organisations also presented
papers and provided excellent attendances at NDS
national conferences again this year.

The primary vehicles used by NDS to inform
members of achievements, issues, alerts and news
affecting the sector are electronic News Updates
and E-News. This year NDS SA issued 71 of these to
members on various topics.

2009-10 has seen unprecedented growth in
membership and representation in SA. This has
been enhanced by the willingness of members to

be involved and to work together, plus the
camaraderie and eagerness of NDS staff nationwide
to share, assist and mentor for the benefit of
enhancing the abilities of the citizens our member
organisations support.

“9—10 has seen unprecedented growth in
membership and representation ir”
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Dale Luttrell, Chair

TASMANIA

ADVICE TO STATE GOVERNMENT ON
POLICY AND SERVICE DELIVERY

NDS TAS regularly meets with senior staff of
Disability and Community Services and briefs the
Cabinet Secretary responsible for this portfolio,
Cassy O'Connor.

Advice has been focused on the major KPMG Reform
recommendations related to:

e New Gateway Services

* Assessment

e Unit Pricing

e Community Access.

In addition, NDS TAS has provided advice on:
e the Review of Tasmania's Disability Legislation
e working with vulnerable clients

e changes to the Poisons Act regarding the
administration of S8 medications

e client-based decision making

e workforce issues

e service agreements.

NDS TAS also provides information and policy

recommendations to other areas of state
government, including:

e Pilot Internship Program for Grade 10 students

e internships and lectures for polytechnic students

e transport review of public passenger vehicles
e social inclusion

e equity policy for Skills Tasmania.

CONSULTATION AND REPRESENTATION
WITH NDS MEMBERS

NDS TAS was responsible for an active pre-election
strategy in the weeks leading up to the March state
election. NDS TAS hosted three public forums in
Hobart, Burnie and Launceston to hear disability
policy commitments from Human Services shadow
spokespeople and candidates. In addition NDS TAS
sponsored two 'Open Letter” advertisements to
ensure that the three political leaders had specific
disability policy announcements during the
election campaign.

This strategy included a Leaders’ Forum, held in
Parliament House, where each of the three political
parties gave a commitment to progress a National
Disability Insurance Scheme.

NDS TAS works with its members within committees
and specific interest groups to overcome funding and
policy barriers affecting service provision throughout
the state.

Key issues addressed this year include:

e relationship with the Public Guardian

e service agreements

e unit pricing

e children’s respite

e community access

e community equipment scheme

e online completion of National Minimum Data Set.

INFORMATION AND NETWORKING

The State Committee held a planning meeting in
Swansea to identify the key issues for the Tasmanian
NDS members to pursue in 2010. As a result an
Open Letter to the three state political leaders was
prepared to highlight the need for:

e a new relationship between the state government
and NDS

e a Disability Workforce Development Unit
* a State Procurement Plan
e an inclusive Public Service Employment Register

e research into unmet and future needs.
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NDS TAS prepared its annual Budget Priority Access strategies. This work included research of
Submission to Treasury and the Disability Budget local, national and international best practice as
Impact Statement on the 2010 State Budget. well as consultation with local service providers.

Four forums were held in Campbelltown, Hobart,
Both documents are designed to monitor the Launceston and Devonport to assist the project and
performance of the State Government in meeting highlight priorities for implementation in the transfer wn
its disability policy commitments. NDS TAS remains of government day services to the non government g
concerned about ongoing failure to meet the sector. The project resulted in a publication ‘Report —
standards expected in budget transparency which to Government-Community Access for Tasmanians o
clearly details planned expenditure on disability Living with Disability :Options for creating a more Z
services in Tasmania. Furthermore government flexible and sustainable service system”( White =
commitment to social inclusion and disability Jennifer, National Disability Services Tasmania g
awareness is being limited by a lack of planning and March 2010) as well as a Discussion Paper which
specific resource allocation. identifies resourcing and related issues affecting

individual support in the community.

TASMANIAN PROJECTS
Celebrating Support Workers Conference

Community Access Project Held on 12-13 August 2010 at The Tramshed in
NDS TAS was funded by the Reform Unit within Launceston, the 4th “Celebrating Support Workers”
the Department of Health and Human Services to Conference organised by NDS TAS was a very
complete a major study of innovative Community successful event. Around 140 delegates attended

Long Term Service Award presented to Trudi Mohler from St Giles Society by Lyndell George from NDS Tasmania

“TAS works with its members within committees and
specific interest groups to overcome funding and polic
barriers affecting service provision throughout the ’é
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the two day Conference, which brought together
participants from a wide range of Tasmanian
specialist disability service organisations.

The theme of this year’'s Conference was
“Celebrating Change in our Industry” which allowed
presenters to speak on a diverse range of topics over
the two day event. Government speakers included
Cabinet Secretary, Cassy O Connor, and Director of
Disability and Community Services, Aileen Ashford

Disability Support Worker Awards

Tasmania’s first Disability Support Worker Awards
were sponsored by HESTA Super Fund and the
Health and Community Services Union offering
$1000 cash prizes in three categories. The awards
recognise dedication to the sector and proven
records of achieving participation, inclusion and
empowerment for people living with a disability.

The winners were presented at an Awards Ceremony
Dinner held in Launceston following the first day of

the Celebrating Support Workers Conference on 12
August 2010. Member for Bass and Shadow Education
Spokesman Michael Ferguson and local media identity,
Peter Murphy officiated at the evening ceremony.

Categories included:

e Support Worker of the Year:

e Qutstanding Achievement in the Industry:

e | ong-Term Service in the Industry:

The NDS TAS “Alex Tubb” Young Worker Award offers
a younger disability worker the opportunity to expand

their knowledge with a prize of return airfares to
Melbourne and one week’s accommodation, enabling

Margaret Reynolds, TAS Manager

the winner the opportunity to visit a number of
Victorian disability services.

International Day of People with Disability

On Thursday 3 December 2009, NDS TAS hosted an
event to celebrate International Day of People with
Disability at Tolosa Street Park in Glenorchy.

This festive occasion attracted 200 people from a
wide range of disability services and schools. It was
supported by Special Olympics, St John Ambulance
and Lions Club of Glenorchy and will become an
annual event.

NDS Tasmania State Committee Member Paul Mayne, presents Daniel Evans with the Alex Tubb Young Worker Award

OML1 NOILJ3S
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VICTORIA

ADVICE ON GOVERNMENT POLICY AND
SERVICE DEVELOPMENT

NDS VIC initiated the ‘Fair Go for All' campaign

in 2009-10, arguing for increased unit prices for
accommodation and day services in line with the
findings from an independent government-funded
price review. The sector was successful in achieving a
significant rise in shared supported accommodation
funding, but is continuing to advocate for increased
funding for day services and other key activity areas
with Treasury and Premier and Cabinet, as well as
the Department of Human Services.

NDS VIC meets regularly with government
representatives on a wide range of high level
policy issues in a number of portfolios, to provide
the perspective and priorities of disability service
providers in an ongoing reform process. At
ministerial level the portfolios have included the
Minister for Community Services, the Treasurer,
and the Office of the Premier. At the departmental
level, engagement is with the Department of
Human Services, including the Office of the
Senior Practitioner, the Department of Planning
and Community Development, including the
Office of the Community Sector and the Office of
Disability, the Department of Education and Early
Childhood Development, and the Disability Services
Commissioner.

Strategic meetings have included the Human
Services Partnership Implementation Committee, the
Community Services Governance and Management

Working Group, the Industry Development Plan
Advisory Group, Price and Cost Working Group, the
Disability Services Board Annual Complaints Report
Task Group, Community Services and Health Industry
Training Board, Office of the Senior Practitioner’s
Research Grants Panel, Long Service Leave
Reference Group, the DHS Research Reference
Panel, the DHS Workforce Reference Group, and the
DHS Service Reorientation Advisory Group. Other
key policy engagements have included ongoing work
with sector capacity building, implementation of the
Quality Framework, development of a Housing and
Support Strategy, respite and carer support, early
childhood services reform agenda, industrial issues,
wheelchair accessible taxis, vehicle modification
scheme, palliative care, and aids and equipment
scheme redevelopment, among others. These broad-
ranging commitments reflect the extent of policy and
implementation activity in the Victorian environment,
and the time commitment is substantial; however, it
is essential to our role in informing and influencing
directions for the sector.

NDS also met quarterly with the Department

of Families, Housing, Community Services and
Indigenous Affairs' (FaHCSIA) state office to discuss
issues specific to Victorian ADEs, including the
proposed portable long service leave scheme

and the interface between FaHCSIA and the state
Department of Human Services.

SUBMISSIONS
2009-10 Budget Submission

Our Budget Submission, ‘A Case for Investment’,
strongly argued for urgent government response to
the funding gap, which has reached crisis levels for
Victorian service providers; specifically in relation to
supported accommodation, day services, respite, and
therapy. Only supported accommodation received a
price adjustment, and we have continued to press our
case throughout the year.

Two submissions to parliamentary inquiries relating
to supported accommodation and public housing
contributed to rising awareness of the housing crisis,
and the initiation of a Housing and Support Strategy
for people with disability by the Victorian Government.

NDS has also prepared submissions relating to

the proposed Portable Long Service Leave Scheme,
the Regulatory Impact Statement relating to
changes in the Building Code, bus safety, and DHS
Guidelines regarding Day Supports and Individual
Support Packages.
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CONSULTATION AND REPRESENTATION

NDS VIC has continued to work with the broader
community sector through key engagements including:

e the Peaks and Statewide Networks Forum,
convened by VCOSS

e the Coalition for Disability Rights—NDS with Carers
Victoria, Victorian Disability Advocacy Network and
Association for Children with a Disability, which
prepared a ‘Call to Parties’ for the 2010 state
election

e collaboration with other Victorian peak bodies with
a focus on issues for children, families and young
people—Early Childhood Intervention Association,
Kindergarten Parents Victoria and Association of
Children with Disabilities

e training—Community Services and Health Industry
Training Board

e industrial relations—the Victorian Hospitals
Industry Association and development of a
Memorandum of Understanding with the three
industry unions for 2009-10.

Top from Left: Breigh Smith, Wendy O'Neill and Catherine Doherty
Bottom from Left: Suzanne O'Neill, Rhonda Lawson Street (State Manager) and Sarah Fordyce
Absent: Kerry Presser, Carol Grant, Erin Davidson, Georgia Taylor and Helen Bryant

ADVISORY GROUPS AND
MEMBERS MEETINGS

Advisory groups met regularly including
Accommodation, Workforce Planning, Service
Reorientation, Disability Employment Networks,
Australian Disability Enterprises, Ageing and
Disability, Research, and Children Young People
and Families. Member forums were held every 2-3
months for accommodation, service reorientation,
workforce, and Australian Disability Enterprises
(ADEs). Regional meetings were held in May for
members to meet the new State Manager, raise local
concerns, and prepare for the 2010 state election.

INFORMATION AND NETWORKING

Conference

NDS VIC joined with Disability Professionals Victoria
to hold the inaugural From Strength to Strength
Conference in March 2010. The program showcased
future-focused responses to the current challenging
operational environment, through the themes of
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organisational dynamics, leadership and change
methodologies, innovations, and finance, governance
and risk management. It was a well attended and
very successful event.

Quality Forum

A "Passport to Quality’ Forum was held in April to
conclude stage two of the Quality Networks Project.
Network leaders presented the achievements

and products of their collaborative work, which

has greatly developed the capacity of the sector

in preparing for and implementing the state
government Quality Framework.

PROJECTS

Occupational Health and Safety

The second year of this three-year WorkSafe funded
project has focused on addressing systemic issues
as well as providing opportunities for practical
networking and support. Progress includes OHS
network meetings held quarterly in most regions,

an annual OHS Forum, collaboration between NDS
members and WorkSafe to produce a new publication
Disability Services - occupational health and safety
compliance kit, a disability seminar in WorkSafe
Week, increased frequency of use of the email
discussion network for collaboration and information
sharing, and initiating a strategic relationship with
the Safety Institute of Australia to make connections
between the disability sector and OHS professionals.

Good Governance Project

The Good Governance Project, run jointly with
learning and development organisation field,

has continued successfully with tailored training
for boards of management of disability service
providers, and distribution of resources. The program
was expanded in 2009-10 with the development

of resources and training packages relating to
Self-Directed Approaches, Risk Management and
Strategic Planning. The training has been well
received, with particularly strong demand from
small and medium-sized rural service providers.
Demand has consistently outstripped availability of
the training.

Workforce Data Project

The Workforce Data Project was initiated to gain
accurate comprehensive data about the disability
workforce in Victoria. Over 100 service providers
agreed to participate in the project, which involves
completion of three surveys relating to salary data,

human resource data, and employees. Participating
organisations receive an individual report allowing
them to benchmark their salary details against those
of the sector. Final non-identifying data will be made
available to the sector in late 2010.

Quality Project

This state-wide project built on the successful 2008
NDS Networks for Quality Project. Applications
were invited from disability service providers for
grants of up to $15,000 to complete projects by the
end of March 2010. Applications chosen for funding
focused on creating networks of between six and
15 organisations to work together to assist their
implementation of the DHS Quality Framework,
and prepare for independent monitoring. Project
outcomes included the development and sharing of
organisational processes, data management, and
quality systems documentation.

Risk Management Project

NDS, in partnership with the Victorian Managed
Insurance Authority (VMIA] and the Department of
Human Services (DHS), developed an innovative

risk management project designed to support
improved business management capability through
the application of strategic and operational risk
management analysis and control processes. More
than 150 disability service providers from small,
medium and large community service organisation
(CSOs) were involved in the development of the

Risk Management and Controls Model for the
sector. The model allows organisations to set goals
and strategies for improved risk management,
determining appropriate levels of risk control based
on governance, size, complexity, resources and
management aspects. A first for the sector, the

tool is applicable for any size organisation and any
service type. One of the project highlights is the
level of member engagement and involvement in the
development and validation of the model. The model
was successfully tested by 110 participants during
five pilot training sessions held across the state, and
is supported by six practical resources—all available
from the NDS website.

Strategic Business and Financial
Planning Project

To support Victorian day service providers in

moving towards individually-attached and self-
directed approaches to service delivery, NDS and

the Department of Human Services (DHS) are
collaborating on the Strategic Business and Financial
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Planning Project. Business and financial consultants ~ seminar program. Project benefits include individual

Pitcher Partners were engaged to develop expert support, recognising the context and specific
advice, support and resources for day service requirements of the disability sector, financial tools
providers to manage this significant transition, to assist the individualised approach, and a guided
building strategic and financial management self-assessment tool identifying business and
capacity. A sector-led industry reference group financial strengths and weaknesses, especially for
informs the project. In the first six months of the those organisations which have just started out on
project, 50 organisations have participated in a the journey.

OML NOILJ3S

“ VIC meets regularly with government representatives
on a wide range of high level policy issues in a number of
portfolios, to provide the perspective and priorities of disability

service providers in an ongoing reform proc,’
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Joan McKenna Kerr,
Chair

NDS WA and its membership operated in a dynamic
public policy environment during 2009-10. Drivers of
this changing policy setting included the release of
the WA Government's Economic Audit Committee’s
(EAC) report ‘Putting People First’, significant wins in
relation to the WA Government’s procurement policy
for Australian Disability Enterprises, and Disability
Employment Services experiencing a major shift in
the program framework.

In addition to contending with these environmental
factors, WA disability services providers are working
through the impact of state housing policy reform

and funding shortfalls, which has led to a number

of significant concerns in relation to the ongoing
supply and management of housing, the rollout of

the new Disability Services Commission [DSC] Quality
Management Framework, the release of DSC's
Disability Future Directions and its impact on future
service design, and the review of Business Rules Rate.

ECONOMIC AUDIT COMMITTEE

Major social reforms in Western Australia are being
progressed through the implementation of the EAC
Report and NDS WA is well placed to facilitate many of
the recommendations. To this end, NDS WA is playing
an important role in the implementation process
through representation on the Partnership Forum,
reporting directly to the Premier, and also steering
groups and committees undertaking work on high
priority issues including funding, procurement, policy
formulation, and community service capacity building.

The Economic Audit implementation process is
focusing on new ways government and the non-
government sectors can work together. As part
of this initiative, NDS WA is playing a key role to
facilitate the following outcomes:

e empowering individuals and communities in
decision making

e expanding the role of the disability sector in
service delivery

e creating a sustainable not-for-profit sector
e increasing flexibility and reducing ‘red tape’

e fostering partnership and consultation between
government, the disability sector, and the broader
community.

HOUSING

NDS WA was also very pleased by DSC's interim
response to the housing shortfall issues for people
with disability that had been raised by NDS. The
commitment to one-off funding of over $18 million
will greatly assist the housing problem in the short
term and has been well received by the sector.
However, the medium to longer term issue of
ensuring timely access to housing for people with
disability is still to be settled.

NDS WA, with funding from DSC, contracted the
Housing and Urban Research Institute of WA (Curtin
University) to research future options for specialist
disability housing and this resulted in the report
‘Identification and Evaluation of Options for Specialist
Disability Housing for Clients with a Range of Needs
and Disabilities’.

The Housing and Urban Research Institute WA,
Curtin University of Technology, was engaged by NDS
WA with DSC funding to undertake research with

the objectives of, (1) identifying the likely demand for
housing for people with disability, and (2] evaluating
potential structural arrangements between

the specialist disability services sector and the
Department of Housing to maximise the availability
of appropriate housing stock for people with disability
into the future. The report identified alternative
arrangements to improve the interface between the
specialist disability services and housing sectors

and the need to press the state government to re-
establish a secure and dedicated funding stream
which will ensure an adequate supply of housing to
meet the core disability housing needs.
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WORKFORCE ISSUES

Workforce remuneration and development continued
as a major priority issue for disability service
providers over the last 12 months. In response, NDS
WA commissioned the report ‘Independent Analysis
of Salaries and Wages Paid to Support Care Workers'
by William Buck, a prominent firm of accountants
and business advisers. The report found that support
workers in the non-government disability sector,

on average, receive approximately 20% less than
government employees for similar work.

The issue of staff remuneration is central to the
sustainability of the sector and its capacity to play
an expanding role in service delivery, as envisaged
by the EAC report. The Premier has acknowledged

a wages gap and is committed to addressing the
problem. A Community Sector Funding Working
Group has been established to review the matter and
NDS WA has two disability sector representatives
examining this critical issue.

NDS WA also supported the sector with the following
workforce initiatives:

¢ Professional Development Project—NDS WA, with
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support from a DSC grant, continues to develop
a diverse range of professional development

opportunities for the sector. Events continue to be

well attended and positive feedback received.

e Disability Sector Liaison Officer (DSTLO)—over
the past 12 months the major achievements
have included:

e improving the collaboration between disability
sector organisations and Registered Training
Providers

e changing the administration of traineeships that
has allowed more workers to become eligible

e having a ‘centralised’ point where queries from
sector organisations and training providers may
be directed. This, together with the development

of the IDEASWA website, has proved an invaluable

resource for the sector
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e |deaswa.net experiencing increased use, from 200
discrete individual users per month to an average

of 700.
e Disability Support Worker Awards—NDS WA,

together with event partners, the DSC and St John of
God Health Care, hosted the 2010 Disability Support

R
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Top row from left: Frances Thomas, Su-Hsien Lee, Shona Campbell-Brown, Krystie Bennett, Debbie Alvarado, Liz McGilligan,
David Rogers and Sonya Horsman. Bottom row from left: Matthew Mostyn, Helen Granville, Carlo Calogero (State Manager),
Monique Williamson and Anne Thornton. Absent: Mary Butterworth, Cora-lee Godden, Lesley Pereira and Julie Walker
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Worker Awards. There were a record number of
nominations and attendees. The annual event
provided an opportunity to recognise and celebrate
the commitment, dedication and achievements of
disability support workers in WA. The event will be
expanded in 2011 to include awards for support
workers in employment services.

REGIONAL AND INDUSTRY
DEVELOPMENTS

NDS WA also embarked on a number of significant
strategic initiatives this year through the support
and assistance of Lotterywest. This work included
significantly expanding professional development
opportunities for regional disability service
providers, facilitating preliminary planning for
industry development in the disability sector and the
establishment of a small grants scheme for people
with disability administered directly by NDS WA.

DSC-FUNDED INITIATIVES

NDS acknowledges the Director General of DSC,

Dr Ron Chalmers and DSC staff for working with
NDS WA on a wide range of priority and strategic
issues. Disability housing, workforce remuneration,
governance, business rules, regional service
development, coordinated sector pandemic response,
and the Economic Audit Report have been some of
the major issues on the agenda for discussion over
the last year.

COMMUNITY SERVICES

The NDS WA manages two community service
programs (Companion Card and ACROD Parking
Program] that are large state-wide social inclusion

[ .

Carlo Calogero, State Manager NDS WA presents the
Accommodation Support Award to Dawn Harvey from
Activ Foundation

initiatives providing services to over 64,000 Western
Australians with disability.

Over the past 18 months, NDS WA has been closely
involved in supporting the federal government policy
to harmonise the disability parking program.

“nnual event provided an opportunity to recognise
and celebrate the commitment, dedication and
achievements of disability support workers ir,\’
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NDS MEMBERS

SECTION 3




As at 30 June, there were 662 Organisational
Members, 7 Life Members, 41 Organisational
Associates and 90 Individual Associates.

LIFE MEMBERS
John Button

Jean Garside OBE
Edith Hall AM

Ted Petersen AM
Felicity Purdy
Michael Sumner

Joan Tuxen MBE

ORGANISATIONAL MEMBERS
A.Q.A. Victoria Limited

ABI Services NSW (Inc)

Ability Care Ltd

Ability Options

Ability Solutions Inc

Ability Tasmania Group Inc

Ability Works Australia Ltd

Able Australia Services

Able Australia Services (Tasmania)
Aborigines and Islanders Alcohol Relief Service Ltd
Access Industries for the Disabled Ltd
Access Mildura Inc

Access Recreation Inc

ACES INC

Achieve Australia Limited

ACSO Specialist Services

Activ Foundation Inc

Active Property Services Management
Advance Employment Inc

Advance Personnel (Canberra) Inc
Advocacy South West Inc

Aged & Community Services Australia
ALARA Assaciation Inc

Albury Wodonga Community College
Alkira Centre - Box Hill Inc

Alzheimer's Australia SA Inc

Amandus: Lutheran Disability Services
Amicus Group Inc

Anglicare Canberra & Goulburn

Anglicare NT

Anglicare Tasmania Inc

Anglicare Victoria

annecto: the people network

Anowah Community Living Inc

Araluen Centre

Ararat & District Disabled Persons’ Assoc Inc
Arthritis Foundation of SA

Arts Access Australia

Arts Access Society Inc

The Ascent Group Australia Ltd

ASHCARE Incorporated

Assert Services Inc

Association for Children with Disability (Tas) Inc
Association for the Blind of Western Australia (Inc)
ASTERIA Services Inc

Aurora Disability Services

Australian & New Zealand Association
of Neurologists

Australian Advisory Board on Autism
Spectrum Disorders

Australian Blindness Forum

Australian Communication Exchange Ltd
Australian Foundation for Disability [AFFORD]
Australian Huntington's Disease Association
Australian Parent Advocacy Inc

Autism Association of Western Australia (Inc]
Autism Behavioural Intervention of NSW Limited
Autism Queensland

Autism SA

Autism Spectrum Australia (Aspect)

Autism Tasmania Inc

Autism Victoria

Aware Industries Ltd

Ballarat Regional Industries Inc

Ballina District Community Services Association
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Baptist Community Services

The Baptist Union of Qld - Fassifern
Community Centre

Baptistcare

Baralaba Community Aged Care Association Inc
Barkuma Inc

Barossa Enterprises

Bathurst Independent Living Skills Inc
The Bedford Group

Behha Enterprises Incorporated
Belconnen Community Service
Bendigo Access Employment Inc
BEST Community Development

BEST Employment Ltd

Better Hearing Australia (Sydney) Inc
Biala Peer Support

Bindi Inc

Bizlink Incorporated

Blairlogie Living & Learning Inc

Blue Mountains Disability Services Ltd
Blueline Laundry Inc

Bowen Flexi Care Inc

Brain Injury Association of NSW Inc
Brain Injury Association of Tasmania Inc

Bridges & Pathways Institute Inc (Chronic
Iltness Network]

Brighton & Districts Helping Hand Assoc for
Intellectually Disabled

Brightwater Care Group

Brite Services

Broadmeadows Disability Services
Brotherhood of St Laurence
Brunswick Industries Association Inc

Bundaberg Skills Centre Inc T/A IMPACT Make
Your Mark

Burdekin Community Association Inc
Burdekin Flexible Support Service Inc
Burke and Beyond

Canberra Blind Society Incorporated

Capabilities Employment Service Inc

Capricornia Respite Care Association Inc (KALKIAH)
Care Connect Limited

Care Options Incorporated

Career Contact Inc

Carers Association of Tasmania Inc

Carers NT Inc

CareSouth

CareWest Inc

Caringa Enterprises Ltd

%)
m
O
-
o
z
o |
T
0
m
m

Carinya Society
Carpentaria Disability Services Inc

casa Central Australia Inc

Casino Neighbourhood Centre

CASPA (North Coast Children's Home Inc]
Cassowary Coast Employment Group Inc
Castle Personnel Services Inc

Catholic Healthcare

Catholic Social Services NSW/ACT
CatholicCare Canberra & Goulburn

CAUS (Communication Rights Australia)
Centacare (Catholic Diocese of Rockhampton)
Centacare Disability Services

Central Access Limited

Central Bayside Community Health Service Inc
Central Coast Disability Network Inc

Central Coast Post School Options Inc

The Central Highlands & Western QLD Family
Support Assoc Inc

The Centre for Cerebral Palsy

Centre for Disability Studies

Cerebral Palsy League of Queensland

Cerebral Palsy Tasmania

Cessnock Hostel Ltd

Challenge Disability Services

Challenge Southern Highlands Inc

Challenge Tweed Incorporated t/as Synergy Group
Charles Darwin University

Charters Towers Neighbourhood Centre Inc

Chatswood Supported Living Services
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CHESS - Coffs Harbour Employment Support Service
Children with Disability Australia

Chinese Parents Association - Children with
Disabilities Inc

Choice Solutions Inc

Christie Centre Inc

Civic Disability Services Limited

CNS Precision Assembly

Coastal Accommodation Support Service Inc [CASSI)
Coastal Residential Service Inc

Cobram Gateway Services Inc

Coffs Harbour Challenge Inc

Coffs Harbour Support Services Inc

Colac Otway Disability Accommodation Inc
Communities@dWork

Community Accommodation and Respite Agency
Inc (CARA]

Community Business Bureau Inc
Community Care (Northern Beaches)
Community Connections Australia
Community Connections Inc
Community First International
Community Lifestyles Inc

Community Lifestyles Support Inc
Community Living & Respite Services
Community Living Association
Community Options Brokerage Service Incorporated
Community Options Inc

Community Programs Association T/A LEAD
Community Resource Unit Inc
Community Solutions Inc
Community Vision Inc

The Compass Institute Inc

Compass Whitsundays Inc
CONNECT GV

Connect2Group

Cooinda Hill Association Inc

Cooinda Terang Inc

Cooma Challenge Limited

Cootharinga Society of North Queensland

Cora Barclay Centre

Cosmos Recreation Services

CP Australia

The Cram Foundation

CREATE (Geelong] Inc

Crosslinks Incorporated

Customised Training Pty Ltd

Cystic Fibrosis New South Wales

DAISI (Disability and Aged Information Service Inc)
Dame Pattie Menzies Centre Inc

Deaf Children Australia

Devonfield Enterprises

Direct Employment Services Ltd

Directions Family Support Association
Disability Alliance Inc

Disability Attendant Support Service Inc [DASSI)

Disability in the Arts, Disadvantage in the Arts,
Australia (WA) Inc (DADAA)

Disability Information Advocacy Service (DIAS)
Disability Professionals Victoria (DPV)
Disability Services Australia Limited

The Disability Trust

Disabled Motorists Association

Distinctive Options

Down Syndrome Association of Victoria Inc
The Down Syndrome Association of WA (Inc]
Dundaloo Foundation Ltd

Dunrossil Challenge Foundation Ltd

E.W. Tipping Foundation

Eastern Access Community Health Inc
Eastern Respite & Recreation

Eastwork Employment Inc

EDAR (Eastern Disability Access Resource)
EDGE Employment Solutions

Elba Incorporated

Elouera Association Inc

Emmanuel

EmployABILITY

Enable Southwest
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Encompass Community Services Inc
Endeavour Foundation

Endeavour Industries Gbn Inc
Endeavour Industries Ltd

Enhanced Care Association Inc
Enhanced Lifestyles Inc

Epic Employment Service Inc
Epilepsy Association of SA & NT Inc
Epilepsy Association of the ACT Inc
Epilepsy Australia Ltd

Epilepsy Foundation of Victoria Inc
Epilepsy Queensland Inc

Eskleigh Foundation Inc

Essential Personnel

Essential Personnel Association Inc
Eurella Community Service Inc
Extended Families Australia
Fairbridge WA Inc: Fair Program
Fairhaven FutureCare Ltd
Fairholme Disability Support Group Inc
Family Support WA

Finding Workable Solutions Inc

Fisher Road School for Special Purpose P & C
Association

The Flagstaff Group Limited
Flintwood Disability Services Inc
Focus ACT Incorporated

Focus Individualised Support Services
Forrest Personnel Incorporated

The Forsight Foundation for the Deaf/Blind
Fraser Coast Family Networks Inc
FSG Australia

Gateway Industries

Gateways Support Services

GDP Industries

Gellibrand Support Services

George Gray Centre Incorporated
Geraldton Personnel Inc

Gladstone & District Respite Care Association Inc

Gladstone Community Linking Agency (Inc)
Glen Industries

Glenray Industries Ltd

Gold Coast Recreation & Sport Inc

Golden City Support Services Inc
Goldfields Individual & Family Support Assoc Inc
Good Samaritan Industries

Goulburn Options Incorporated

Granite Belt Support Services Inc

Great Southern Personnel

Greenacres Disability Services

Guide Dogs Association of SA and NT Inc
Gungahlin Regional Community Service Inc
Gunnedah Workshop Enterprises Ltd
Hands On SA

Hartley Lifecare Incorporated

Hastings District Respite Care Inc

HeadEast Eastern Sydney Acquired Brain Injury
Community Access Service Inc

Headstart Community Access Programme Inc
Headway Adult Development Program Inc
Headway Gold Coast Inc

Headway rebuilding lives

Headwest (Brain Injury Assoc of WA Inc]
Heart Support - Australia ACT Branch
Hedland Personnel Inc

HELP Enterprises

Heritage Industries Inc

Highlands Support Services Inc T/A Finding Futures
Hills Community Options Inc

Hills Community Support Group

Hinchinbrook Employment Services Association
Incorporated

Hinterland Community Care Inc

Hobart City Mission

Home Help Service ACT Inc

Home Support Association Inc

Housing Choices Australia

The Housing Connection [NSW) Inc

Housing Resource and Support Service Inc (HR&SS)
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HPA Incorporated

IDEAL Placements Association Inc
identitywa

[-GAIN Quality Learning Inc

IMPACT Support Services

Inala

Inclusion Melbourne

Inclusive Directions Inc

Independence Australia

Independent Living Centre of Western Australia (Inc)
Independent Living Centre Tasmania
Independent Living Centres Australia Inc
The Infants’ Home Child & Family Services
Ingham Parents Support Group Inc
Integrated Disability Action Inc

Integrated Family and Youth Service Inc
integratedliving Australia

Interact Australia

Interaction Disability Services Limited
Interchange Central Gippsland Inc
Interchange Inc

Interchange Loddon Mallee Region Inc
Interchange Respite Care NSW Inc
Interchange Victoria Respite Care Association Inc
Interchange Western Region Assoc Inc
Intework Inc

Inverell Accommodation Services Inc
Ipswich and Toowoomba Employment Service
lvanhoe Diamond Valley Centre Inc

Jewish Care

Jewish Care [Victoria) Inc

Job Futures Ltd

Job Placement Ltd

JobCo Employment Services

Jobsupport Inc

Julia Farr Association

The Junction Works Inc

Kalparrin Inc

Kankama Association Inc

Karden Disability Support Foundation
Karingal

Karkana Support Services Inc

Kempsey Workpool Inc

Keppel Community Care Assoc Inc

Kids are Kids Therapy & Education Centre Inc
Kimberley Individual and Family Support Assoc
Kimberley Personnel Inc

Kingfisher Adult Learning Programs Inc
Kira Incorporated

Kirinari Community Services Inc
Knoxbrooke Incorporated

Koomarri

Kura Yerlo Council Inc

Kurrajong Waratah

Kyeema Support Services Inc

Lambing Flat Enterprises Ltd

Langford Support Services

L'Arche Brisbane Inc

L'Arche Genesaret Inc

L'Arche Sydney Inc

Lasercraft Australia Ltd

Latrobe Community Health Service

Latrobe Valley Enterprises

Launceston Community Legal Centre
LeapFrog Ability

Life Without Barriers

Life Without Barriers (VIC)

Life Without Barriers (WA

Lifestyle Solutions (Aust) Ltd

Link In Association Sunshine Coast Inc
Lorna Hodgkinson Sunshine Home

Lower Great Southern Family Support Assoc
Macarthur Accommodation System
Macarthur Disability Services Ltd

Maccro Mansfield Adult Autistic Services Ltd
MACH 1 Australia Incorporated

MacKillop Family Services

MacKillop Rural Community Services
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Macleay Kalipso Inc

Macleay Options Inc

MADEC

Mai-Wel Limited

Mambourin Enterprises Inc

Mamre Association Inc

Marillac

Marriott Support Services

Marymead Child & Family Centre
Mawarra Centre

McCall Gardens Community Limited
McCallum Disability Services

ME/CFS Society (SA) Inc

Melba Support Services Inc

Melbourne Citymission Inc

Mental Health Association of Central Australia Inc
Mental Health Co-ordinating Council
Mercy Centre Lavington Ltd

Mercy Disability Services

Merrimu Services Inc

Micah Projects

Midway Community Care

Midwest Community Living Association Inc
Milparinka ATU

Minda Inc

Minimbah Challenge Inc

Ministerial Advisory Council on Disability
Miroma

Mirridong Services Inc

Moe Life Skills Community Centre Inc
MOIRA

Montagu Community Living Inc
MontroseAccess

Mosaic Community Care Inc

Motor Neurone Disease Assoc of NSW Inc
Motor Neurone Disease Association of SA Inc
Motor Neurone Disease Association of Victoria Inc
Motor Neurone Disease Australia

Mount Isa Skills Association Inc

MS Australia

Mulleraterong Centre Inc

Multicap

Murdoch Community Services Inc

Murray Human Services Inc

Murray Valley Centre Inc

Muscular Dystrophy Association Inc
Muscular Dystrophy Association Inc (SA)
Muscular Dystrophy Association of NSW Inc
My Place Foundation

Nadrasca Ltd

Nambucca Valley Phoenix

Narcolepsy Overwhelming Sleep Disorder of SA Inc
National Brain Injury Foundation Inc

The National Employment and Psychological
Services Centre Inc

Neil Sachse Foundation

The Neurofibromatosis Association of SA Inc
New Era Independent Living Centre Inc

New Haven Farm Home Ltd

New Horizons Enterprises Ltd

Newcastle and Hunter Community Access Inc
Newl|DAFE

Nexus Incorporated

NICAN Incorporated

Nillumbik Community Health Service
Ningana Enterprises Inc

Noah's Ark Resource Centre

Noah's Ark Toy Library & Resource Centre (Inc)
North East Training & Employment Inc

North Queensland Competitive Employment Service
North West Disability Services Inc

North West Residential Support Services
Northaven Limited

Northcott Disability Services

Northern Disability Services Inc

Northern Occupational Support Service Inc
Northern Residential Support Group Inc

Northern Support Services for People
with Disabilities

334H1 NOIL33S

National Disability Services Annual Report 09-10 50




Northside Community Service

Nova Employment Inc

Novita Children’s Services

Noweyung Ltd

NPY Women's Council

NSW Consumer Support & Training Project
Nulsen

Numurkah Occupational Vocational Adult
Services ([NOVAS)

Oak Tasmania
Oakdale Services Tasmania

Oakleigh Centre for Intellectually Disabled
Citizens Inc.

On Track Community Programs

The Onemda Association Inc

On-Focus Inc

ON-Q Human Resources Ltd

Open Minds

Optia Inc

Options Victoria Inc

Orana Incorporated

Oriel Services Limited

Outlook (Vic Inc.

Ovens & King Community Health Service Inc

Oz Child

Ozanam Industries

Palliative Care Victoria Inc

Paradise Community Care Inc

Paraplegic and Quadriplegic Association of NSW Inc
Paraplegic and Quadriplegic Association of SA Inc
Parkinson's SA

The Parkside Foundation Pty Ltd

Pathways Rehabilitation & Support Services Inc
Peace Lutheran Church Gatton Inc Anuha Services
Peckys Disability Services

Peel Community Living Inc

Peel Valley Training Enterprise Inc

Peninsula Access Support & Training (P.A.S.T)
People Learn Productions Inc

PEP Community Services

The Personnel Group Ltd

Perth Home Care Services

Peter Harcourt Disability Services Ltd
Phoenix Society Inc

Pilbara & Kimberley Care Inc

Pinarc Support Services Inc

Pioneer Employment Service

Planned Individual Networks Inc

Plenty Valley Community Health

Polio Awareness SA Inc

Polio SA Inc

Pony Riding for the Disabled

Port Stephens Community Care
Post-Polio Network (NSW) Inc

Prahran Mission

Product Action Incorporated

Project Employment

Psychiatric Rehabilitation Australia
Queensland Narrating Service
Queensland Parents for People with a Disability Inc
R.E.D. Inc (Realising Every Dream)
Recreation and Sport Network

Regional Information and Advocacy Council Inc
Richmond Interagency

Riding for the Disabled Association SA Inc
RISC Association Inc

Riverlink Interchange Inc.

Rocky Bay Inc

Royal Institute for Deaf & Blind Children
Royal Society for the Blind of South Australia Inc
RPH Australia Cooperative Ltd

Ruah Community Services

Rural Lifestyle Options Association Inc
S.C.0.P.E. Incorporated

SA Group Enterprises Inc

Samaritans Foundation

SANE Australia

SBH Queensland Inc

SCOPE (Vic) Ltd
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scosa
SelfHelp Workshop Inc T/A SelfHelp Workplace
Senses Foundation Inc

Seton Villa

Seventh-Day Adventist Aged Care (WA) Ltd

Sexual Health and Family Planning Association ACT Inc
SHARE Bayside Inc

Share Care Incorporated

Sharing Places

Shepparton Access

Sisters of St Joseph Ain Karim Ltd

Skills Innovative Training Enterprise Inc

SkillsPlus Limited

The Society for Multiple Disabled People of Tasmania
Inc (MULTICAP)

Somerville Community Services Inc

South Metropolitan Personnel

South Pacific Educators in Vision Impairment (SPEVI)
South West Gippsland (Moonya) ATSS Inc

Southern Sydney Trusted Care

The Spastic Centre of NSW

Speak Out Association of Tasmania Inc

Spectrum Employment Service Assoc Inc

Spina Bifida & Hydrocephalus Association of South
Australia Inc

Spina Bifida Foundation of Victoria Inc
Spinal Cord Injuries Australia

Spinal Injuries Association

SPIRAL Inc

St Giles Society Inc

St John of God ACCORD

St Laurence Community Services

St Luke's Anglicare

St Michael's Association Inc

St Vincent de Paul Aged Care & Community
Services Ltd

St Vincent De Paul Queensland
St Vincent Industries
Stanthorpe Specialist Employment Service

Star Tasmania Inc

Statewide Autistic Services Inc

Stawell Intertwine Services

Step Out Community Access Service Inc
Stepping Stone Clubhouse Inc

Stepping Stones Lifestyle Options Inc
Steps Disability Qld Inc

STRIVE Warren Blackwood Inc

Stroke SA Inc

Summer Foundation Ltd
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The Sunlea Team Inc
Sunnyfield
Sunnyhaven Ltd

Sunraysia Residential Services Inc

Sunshine Coast Children’s Therapy Centre Inc
Sunshine Coast Family Network Assoc Inc
Sussex Street Community Law Service
Sylvanvale Foundation

Tableland Respite Care Association Inc
Talkback Association for Aphasia Inc

Tandem Respite Incorporated

Tas Housing Incorporated

TASCARE Society for Children

Tasmanian Acquired Brain Injury Services Inc
Tastex Knitwear Inc.

Technical Aid to the Disabled (ACT) Inc
Technical Aid to the Disabled NSW

Technical Aid to the Disabled Queensland Inc
Therapy Focus Inc

Thorndale Foundation Ltd

Tinnitus SA

Tomaree Neighbourhood Centre

Top End Association for Mental Health Inc
(TEAM Health)

Total Recreation NT Inc

Town and Country Community Options Inc.
Townsend House Inc

Transition & Integration Services

Tulgeen Group

UnitingCare - Hunter, Central Coast &
New England Region
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UnitingCare Community Options

UnitingCare Disability

UnitingCare Queensland

UnitingCare Wesley Port Pirie

UnitingCare West

Upper Great Southern Family Support Association Inc
Upper Murray Family Care

Valley Industries Ltd

Valleys to Plateau Community Support Services Inc
Valmar Support Services Ltd

Valued Independent People

Vantage Inc

VATMI Industries

Victorian Coalition ABI Service Providers Inc (VCASP)
Victorian Deaf Society

Villa Maria Society

Vincent Industries Inc

Vision Australia

W.AT.C.H.

WA Blue Sky Inc

WA Disabled Sports Association

Wagga Wagga Community Access Support Service Inc
WALCA Association Inc

Wallara Australia Ltd

Wangarang Industries Ltd

Warrah

Warrina Services

Waverley Helpmates Inc

Waverley Industries Ltd

WCIG

We Can Association Inc

Wesley Mission Disability Services

Wesley Mission Victoria

West Wimmera Health Service

Westcare Inc

Western Australian Deaf Society Inc

Western District Supported Employment Service Inc
Western Education Support & Training NETwork Inc

Westhaven Association Ltd

Westside Community Services Limited
Wheatbelt Individual & Family Support Assoc
The Wheelchair and Disabled Association of Australia

Whittlesea District Branch of the Helping
Hand Association

Willing & Able Foundation Limited
Wimmera Uniting Care

Windarring Central Highlands Association for People
with Disabilities Inc

Windermere Child and Family Services Inc
Windgap Foundation

Witmore Enterprises Inc

Woden Community Service Inc

Woodbine Inc

Woodstock Support Inc

Woodville Community Services Inc
Woorinyan Inc

Work Connection Limited

Work Solutions

Work Venture (Qld) Ltd

Worklink Employment Support Group Inc
Workpower (Inc)

Work-Ways

WRESACARE INC

Xavier Children’s Support Network
Yallambee Deniliquin Ltd

Yarrabin Outreach Inc

YFS Community Connections

Yooralla

ORGANISATIONAL ASSOCIATES

Access Innovation Media
Ann O'Brien Consulting
Anti-Discrimination Commission Queensland

Blackall - Tambo Regional Council
Community Services

Bridge the Gap Training and Assessment
Brooker Consulting Pty Ltd

City of Ballarat - Kohinoor Community Centre
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City of Boroondara

City of Cockburn

Clarence Valley Council Community Support Service

Department of Parliamentary Services
Dymphna Laurie Consulting

E-QUAL (Enhancing Quality)

field

The Garden Court Centre

Health and Disability Auditing Australia
Holroyd City Council - Disability Services
International Standards Certification Pty Ltd
J.T.S and Associates Pty Ltd

La Trobe Lifeskills, Recreation & Work Inc
Macarthur Community Options

MAX Software Solutions

McVicar & Reynolds Pty Ltd

Mid-Western Recycling

ONCALL Personnel & Management Services Pty Ltd

Port Macquarie - Hastings Council

Public Speaking Dynamics

Quality of Life and Social Justice Research Centre

Quality Research

Real Community Services

SAFESELECT

Social Inclusion Unit

St George & Sutherland Community College
State Library of NSW

Supported Housing Development Group Pty Ltd
Synthesize Consultancy Pty Ltd

Territory Care and Support Services

Trio Support Services Pty Ltd

Tweed Shire Community Options

West Nurse Service Pty Ltd

Workforce Auckland Inc

Frank Barila
Chris Bebb

Suzanne Becker

Christine Bigby
Michelle Boles

Juell Booth

Sharon Boyce

Steven Bristow

Jan Brown

Joy Cairns OAM
Amanda Calwell-Smith
Michele Castagna OAM
Beverly Charnley
Kristine Chipps
Alanna Clohesy
Justine Constable
Dianne Cook
Margaret Cooper OAM
Ben Crothers

David Cuda

Richard Dalla-Riva MLC
Francesca Davenport
Patrick Eadington
Sheridan Forster
Ruth Fotheringham
Michael Fox AM

Anita Geach-Bennell
Paul Gilby

Fay Grafen

Joe Graffam

John Groves

lan Hay

Anne-Lucy Healy
Paul Heath

Richard Hill

Debra Hindle
Elizabeth Jones

Phil Keir

Elissa Kelly

Jenny Kent

Stella Koritsas

Christine Lee
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Terry LeMay
Helen Makeham
Jeno Marosszeky
Eric Martin

Gary Matthews
Wesley McCulloch
Alison McFarlane
Darlene McLennan
Sharon McMeekin
Alan Meagher
Elizabeth Mellor
Nadia Moffatt
Claire Moore
William Moore
Phillip Morath
John Morkham
Max Murray

Brian O'Hart
Therese O'Malley
Casper Ozinga
Sam Paior

David Pearce OAM
Nick Polimenakos
Laurel Prince
Mark Relf

Norma Rigby
Serena Roberts
Carey Sebbens
Craig Shallard
Val Simpson
Tanya Sperring
Dell Stagg

Thea Summerville
Davina Taylor
Benny Thomas
lan Thompson
Tony Tregale

Ryan Thrupp

Lester Tropman

Stephen Wade, MLC
Susan Warth

Erika Webb

Geoff Welchman
Patricia Wetton
Stephen Winn
Bryan Woodford
Mary Wooldridge
Michael Wooley

National Disability Services Annual Report 09-10




FINANCIAL
REPORTS

SECTION 4



National Disability Services

NATIONAL DISABILITY SERVICES LIMITED
ACN 008 445 485

ANNUAL FINANCIAL REPORT

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2010

CONTENTS

Directors' Report
Auditor's Independence Declaration & Independent Audit Report
Directors' Declaration
Statement of Financial Position
Statement of Comprehensive Income
Statement of Changes in Equity

Cash Flow Statement
Motes to the Financial Statements for the year ended 30 June 2010

National Disability Services Annual Report 09-10




HATIOMAL NSABILITY SERVICES LTD - ACH 008 448 485

DIRECTORS' REPORT TO THE MEMBERS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 June 2010

The derectons submit here with the financial statement of the company for the year ended 30 June 2000 together with the

awditers' repart thenson

Directors

The names and expeiense of directart in offics st any time during or sance tha ond of the year ane:

T WK [ .Con, Srad S Ddw, Guied Dip Special ixieh
* Chief Executiee = Aystralian Foundation for Disability
* Danesctor - Peanith Budness Alllarce

Anthany Lund
* Former Chief Evecutive - Disabillty Services Australia
* Chairman Warkabd#y International Ceeania
* Direches - Werkability Intssnational
* Director = benay Bull & Co. Solicitars
* Director - Quality Improsernent Coundl [VIC)

Lymin Chuirk
* Chaaf Exequtive Offissr - Connett2Group ne.

Diairsd Hegghes (Ga1cn, Gesdl (ip umas Shrsons Reseah,

] Mea prspst JAR], WACF [Dablin]
* Chief Emecutive O fzer - SO08E [vic) Lid

Liz Bishep |Besd Dip Bui, Cird Aasos Wigres, Monial Betardation Hurse]
* Chisd Expcutive Officor - 5t Jahn of Ged ACCORD
* Mipmiber NDS Daabilty Commissions Board

Peter Callaghan g es, &80 Commning Sevsons (Caatabng, Mass)
* Chiel Executive Officer - Commiunity Solutions inc.
* Chalrperson - Central Quesnsland Christian College
* Palicy Councl Member - Chamber of Commerce & Industng (LD
* Commities Member - Keppel Communisy Carg Inc.

SUEBMm Healy pired o Seenal b, Dip. ok, B 1]
* Expoutive Dinecion - Sharing Places
* Chairparson - Epilepsy ALT.

Kirsty Carter
* Executive Oflicer - Top End Association for Mental Health Img

Glenn Rappeniberg pis, 5 mgy Aracs)
* Chief Executive - Novita Children's Services
* Director - Aubility First Australia Lbd
* Diregtor - CF Australes ine

* Honorary Expout e Director - Chansel 7 Childeen's Ressarch Feundation Sa

* Vica President 5t Peter's College Foundatian Ing

)
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Preskdent (elected Dec, 09)
Chairperson, NSW Division

Presadent (retired Dee. 2009)
Chialrparson, NSW Division

Viee-Pregidant {reqined Dec. 2005)
Elpcied Member

Vice-Fresident {elected Dec. 2005)
Elpcied Member

Elescted Member

Chairpersan, Q80 Civision

Chairperson, ALT Diwision

Chairpersan, NT Division

Chairpersan, T4 DRisicn
{retired September 2009)
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HATIONAL HSABILITY SERVICES LTD - ACH BB 443 488

DIRECTORS' REPORT (continued)

Kax Dyaton @i
* Chipf Exequtive Officer - Bedfond Industries Inc
* Dargctor - Bedford Housing Cooperative Assocdation

David Con @
* Manager Corporate Serdoes - Dak Tasmania

Cuale Luttéral pams
* Chief Executive Officer - Eskieigh Foundation Inc

Bichard Derl jired D Bun Mo, MBS, WL Yelsre B Socal goiog
* Chied Executive Officer - EJW. Tipping Foundation
* Fubdic Officer - Victorian Person Certred Servioes
* Director - [-GAIM Quality Learming
® Iverim Director - Disability Professionals Australia
* Public Cfficer - South West Gippsland Residential Serdces Assoc

Gordon Trewem
* Chief Executive Clificer - Mulen Haven Adsociation inc
* Member - Disability Services Council Round Table
* Commintes Member CCI Disability Comenittes
* Director Trudy Investmaent Superanniuatson Co.

Jaam MCKernna-KerT {wodeaioe b i Ssciog
* Chiel Deacutive Clficer, Autism Assoclation of Western Awmstralia ing
* Directar - Australian Advisory Board on Autism Specinam Disorgers

Ancinew Richarcsnm (Bt v, ds, R, Gaans)
* Chiel Executive Jdhes - The Wheelchair and Disabled Association of Australia
* Director - Down Syndromee Association MEW

Anthony Pul? jdemep g, ke Do Dby, AIOD)
* Chied Executive Dffcor - Conlesl Atcedd Limited
* Wioe Chair - Banalky Hospital
* Wice Chair - Waminda Nelghbourhood House
* Chalrperson - Benalla Lakeside Cooperative
* Chalrpersan - Hume Region Transport Conneclions Board
* Directod - Morth East bacal Learning & Employment Committes

¥ Chairperian - North East Australian institute of Company Directors Committss

Chairpersodn, 54 Division
[2ppoinited Sept. 20049)

Chairpersan, TAS Divisian
[retired Sept, 2009)

Chalrpersadn, TAS Diilan
[appoinbed Sept. J005]

Chalrperson, VIC Dhvision

Chairperscn, Wi Division
{retired Oolober 2009)
Elected Member

{sppointed Mevember 3005}

Chairperson, Wa Dhvision
{appointed Ocrober 2009)

Elected Member

Elected Member

Dirgctors have been in office since the start of the financial year 10 the date of this repart unless otherwise stated,
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HATIONAL DISABILITY SERVICES LTD - ACH D08 448 485

DIRECTORS' REPORT [continuad)

Directors’ meetings

wn

Mestings attended by each person who was a direstor throughout the year, g

:|

Poatibla Actual o

Tirn Walton 4 4 =

Antheny Lund 1 1 n

Lynn Quirk 4 3 o

Susan Healy 4 3 C

Kirsty Carter 4 3 X
Peter Callaghan 4 2
Glenn Rappensberg 1 1
David Coe 1 N
Anthary Putt 4 g
Richard Diert 4 4
Gandon Trewenin q 4
Andrew Richardson i 4
Liz Blshop q 4
Diana Heggin i 4
BAax Dyadon 3 3
Dale Lutteral 3 i
Joan MoEenna-Eerr 3 1
Eerry Langlord |akemane for Susan Healy) i i

In @tcordance with the company's constitution, two directors will retice a1 the annual general meeting, to be held on 6
December 2010, All are efigible to offer themsehoes for re-elettion,

Bireciors” Interesks and Benellis

Snce the end of the previous financiel year no director of the company has recelved o become entitled to receren any
benefit by reason of a contract made by the company with the director or with a fiem of which the directer is a membaer, of
with a compary in which the carecior has a substantial finencial inberest, other than those related party transactions
disclosed in the financial repert

Dividends

The comparry is limited by guarantes and is prohibited by itz objects from distriuting (05 surplus 1o the members.
Accardingly no dividend has bean pald or declared since the start of the fnancial yesr by the company,
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MNATIOMAL DISABILITY SERVICES LTD - ACK 008 445 485

DIRECTORS' REPORT {continued)
Principal Activities

The peincipal aclasities of the company réemained unchanged during the year and invobeed acting 4 the national co-
ordinating body for organisations and atsociations working bn the disability fueld In Sustralia as well as performing various

sector projects.
Objectives
MDS's lang tenm objecties include:

- 1o increase the capacity of its members to operate afficient and effective services — and assist members b meet rebevant
industry and government standards - through the provision of information and advice, networking opporiunities and access
10 COTpOTaTE SUPRors

- 10 influ=nce governements at bath state/territory and federal levels to provide a palicy erndronment that i responsie to
the needs of people with disability and their sesvice providers.

To achieve these objectives, the Campany has sfopted thie folawing Strategies:

- Equipping membsers to adapt to the new workd in the current seanamic downtown, Perfermance measures include
redevant, sociarate and timely infarmation 1o members abaut this néw world; equipping them with skills ard strategies and
assizting them to achiews sustainability = inchading through influencing governmenis 19 reduce red tape and mmplement
fisnding mcdeds that fully reflect the coit of serdce dilivery, inthuding compliance.

- ldeniify and respend 19 the unmet peed snd changing demand for disability services. Perfarmancs massunes indude
membership satisdaction that all reasonable steps are taken to Influgnce the development of a national scheme which
would provide unheersal and equatable no-lault entitlernest to disability services o 8l Australians wha requine loag-1enm
wppart, promote the continesd expansion of non-government disability servizes because they are generally more efficiens,
rEsponsivie and mission-driven than government services and a funding formulse frem government hat reflecs the
changing needs of dhents

- Respend [0 workionoe development, recruitment and reféntion issues in the disability sector. Performance measures
inglude member satisfaction with NDS"s driving of the woekforce agerda with governments, with close engagement in the
develapment of tha Govennment's Mationsl Daability Workfonge Strategy.

- Ao Cress-program banmiers that prevent services fromn responding to the needs of people with disability. Performanos
miatures include the negotiation aoross programs and all levels of govermment ta find solutions to cross-program bareiens,
recourenendatians for sustainable solutions (o redisce cross program Barriers, indeding influencing the development af the
Mational Disability Strategy.

- FrEmate Servioe improvement through Engaging in reteanch and disseminating resesrch findings. Performancs measures
inzlude influencing o parterships with professional research bodies to initiate research prajects that eshance the guality
of seryice provision and convinoe governments that thelr funcing purchases cost-effective and walwzble cutcomes and
engagemant with stakeholders to develop a natongl disabilicy resaarch agenda that i3 respofsive 1o the nesds of the
seehod,

- Bt Sasieh ek Ched pebdikl waboe [or disability service providers. Perfarmance meaiunes include potitioning NOS as the leading
non-government vilce on dsablity service issues = an esseniial scurce of advice for both state and federal govennments,
WPs, meedia and peak Dodees i allied lelds: NDS 0o be 2een a8 authoritative, reasonsble and progresshve and reganded a5 a
crucial partner in development of national disability servicos standards; HOS seen (o be 8 key resource in develppment and
delbiery of trasning programs for 5584 in disabiEty sendce organisations; member oaganisations viewed by government, the:
penersl public, fervice providers and Australians with disabilities as guality service providers,
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HATIONAL DMSABILITY SERVICES LTD - ACH 00R 445 485

DIRECTORS' REPORT {continued)

« Budlid NS5 capacity, consistency and sustainability. Perlofmance measures include:

Improvement in its financial sustainabil ity with a broader ‘I'ulﬂnalﬂ.ﬂ.

A functionally and structurally sound ety with Bedt praclite governdnce policies and optimal organizational structure,
improved effectiveness and efficency of its processes and systems and improsed standands and integration of its
Fanamgial, HE, Risk Managernanl, Ceality and Communication syilems.

HO5 Maticnal office and NDS States nepan ﬂu!r’l!ﬂ'f on aocomalishmentt Jcrcds thegs IE" retult areas. Tha MeEpores
RighEghs activithes and actions undertaken on behalf of members within the disability servior sector.

)
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Maermbes Guarantee

MWO5 15 a company limited by guarantee. The cormpany hias teo categonies of membsership: Organisational and Lfe.
Organisaticnal Membarship is for not-for-profit coganisatsens n the disability field,

Life mernbers areindividuals elected by a general meeting af NDS

hdembership of the company is by annual subscripticn determined by the size of the member organisation or indeddual.
Oinly members with fully patd subseription in arry year are entitled to wote at the company’s Anpual Genersl beeting.

Ir e evdnd of & winding up members would be Bable fo contribute to the extent that outstanrding subsorptions haee not
Been made. Further, no distributions are made te member in the svent of & winding wp. On a winding up of the Company,
By Iurphid ssets remaining after the payment of the Company's Babilicies shall be transferred (o another ke organisation
in Australia which i a publac benevelend irstitution for the panpases of any Commonwealth Taxation AT, in acoondance
with the Company's constitulion.

Resall of Operationg

During the year the company's activithes revulled in 8 suralus of $631, 794 [2009: $617,767).

Events Subsequent to Balance Date

There had not anden in the inbernal between the end of the fmarcial year and the date of this report any item, transaction

ar event of a material and unusual nature likely, In the openicn of the directors ol 1he company, 1o aflect substantially the
operations of the company, the resulss of those cperations or the state of affairs of 1he company in ubsegquent financisl

WArs.
Saate of Affairs

In the gpinéon of the directors there were no significant changes in the state of affalrs of the company that ocourred during
the finandisl year under review not otherwise disclosed in this report or the accournts.

Rewiew ol Dperations

A detailed review of operations has been included i the reports by the Chief Exaoutive and the President in the Annal
Repart for Mational Csakility Services Limited, Therefore the information has net been intluded under Class Order S8/2355,

Future Developments

A rgvigw of future devalopments has been inciuded in the reports by the Chie! Exeoutiee and the President in the Annual
fepart for Mational Disability Servioes Limited. Therefone the infarmation Bas not been induded under Class Ooder 5872355,
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HATHONAL DISABILITY SERVICES LTD - ACN 008 445 485

DIRECTORS' REFORT [continued)
Indemnifying Officers or Auditor:

The compary has not, during or singe the financial year, in respect of any person wha is of has been an afllcer er suditer
of the comaany o a related body corporate:

. indemnified or made any relevant agreement for indemnifying againe: a Bability incurred a5 an afficer, intuding costs and
expenies i suctesiully defending legal proceedings; or

. pald or agreed to pay a premiwm in respect of a contract insuring against @ Eability incwrred a3 en officer for the coits
o expenses to deferd legal proceedings.

Druring the findncial year the company comtracied Dleeciors’ and Cfficers’ Liabllity insurance on behalf of all deectors and

officers of tha company, The directors have not Included details of the nature of the Babilities covered or the ameount of
the pramium paid in respect of the insuance cortract, as such dischasure is prohibited under the terms of the contract

faditor’s Independence Dedaration:

& copy of the auditor's independence declaration a3 reguired under sectom 307¢ of the Corporations Act 2001 is set out
after the independant audt report,

Signed in sccordance with a resolution of the Board of Directors.

’Z'[}“ Q tﬁ A Bdnrel—

Tim Wakon Adudinin B handios

Dated a1 Sydrey this 27tk dayel October 2010
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MATIONAL DNSABILITY SERVICES LTD - ACH D08 445 485

DIRECTORS' DECLARATION
The directors of the company declare that:

1. The financial statements and notes are im accordance with the Corparaticns A 2001
{a) comply with Accounting Standards and the Corparations Regulations 2001; and

ib] ghve a true and fair view of the finandal position a5 at 30 June 2000
and of the performance far the year ended on that date of the campany.

2. In the directors’ opinkon there are reasonable grownds 1o bebeve that the company will be sble 1o pay its debis a3 and
when they become dise and paryabae,

This declaration it made in Boocrdants with a resolution af the Bosrd of Directors,

jpﬁ &-hhf\ A0, Badmree

Tim Walton Andrire R hardson

Dated ot Sydnery  this 2Tth dayel October 2000
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MOORE STEPHENS

SR NTL TR & &R TRDEL

1at Pligor, §5-7 Conitilution Avesies
Campibeed]l ACT 112

POr Beed 27, Camplsell ACT 26512

a1 §0]F 6245 3300
Fooad 00T G0 Gl

[ 5.a Mirrile L IOl

INDEPENDENT AUDIT REPORT

Tao the Members
Madicnal Disability Sarvices Limited
(ACH: 008 445 £85)

The fnancial reped compises the siatermant of linancial position, stalamang of comprehsnsie noome,
stalament of cash fiows, statement of changes in equity and accompanying nates 1 to 23, and the
directors’ declaration for Mational Disability Services Limited (the Company), for the year ended 30
June 2010,

Board of Directors® Responsibility for the Financial Report

Thea Board of Directors” are respansible for the preparaton and fair presentation of the financial repod in
accordance with Australian Accounting Standands (including the Australian Accounting Inferpratations),
the provisions of the Corporabon Ac! 2007 and the conslitution of the Company. This rispondibility
includes establishing and maintaming internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of
the financial repart that s free rom mabestal misstatameant, whathar dus to fraud or amer; salecling and
applying appropriate accounting palicies, and making acoounting estimales thal am rascnable in the
ciroumstances

Auditor's Responsibility

Dur responsibilty is o express an opindon on the financial report based on our audit. We conducted our
audit in accordance with Australlan Audiing Standards. These Auditing Standards require that we
comply with relevant ethical reguiremants ralating to auwdit angagemants and plan and performn the audit
o oblasn reasanable assurance whather the financial rapor is free from malerial misstalement.

Am audi invohves parforming procedunes to obtain audit evidence aboul the amounts and disclosunes in
tha financiad report The procedures selected depend on the auditors judgement, including the
assessment of the risks of material misstalerment of the Enancial report, whather dus 1o fraud or eevor, In
making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant fo the ently's proparation
and fair praseniation of the financial repon in onder fo cesign audit procedures that are appropriate in
tha circurnstances, but not for the purpose of expressaing an opirion on the effeciiveness of the antitys
intemal condrol. An audit also includes evaleating the appropriatenass of accounting policies wsed and
tho reasonableness of accounling estimales made by the managemant as wall as evaluating the
overall preseniation of the fnancial repoed,

Ve believa thal the audit evidencs we have obtained is sufficant and appropriale to provide a basis for
o it apinkan

Independoncs

In corducting our audit, we have complied wih the independence requirements of the Corporalions

Act 20071,
Pallpiyis e Tantpme Aadit Piy Lid Asitommesd Aud® Corpseey B HILSE SRR 4% |0F 3 Joal Lialeiny Enhed iy 8 whenw
appacreetd under Prodrchmal Alamdank Legnbatem, The Codlretia Ko g Slephei Bons id el @ pacines or agend ol sy offer Mooer
_lrl_-lurn-\, Rim. An = |-'- o e W S T S e '.l.-l|.l nt Imiginesgnal Lesie mandsr ey i paaega il [E=N sl i wenrkd
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MOORE STEPHENS

ACTOUNTARNTS & ADVBOER

Auditer's Oplnion

In our opinion, the financial reper of National Disabdty Senices Limited s in accordanca with the
Corporations Act 2007 incleding:
{i giving a true and fair view of the Company's financlal position as at 30 June 2010 and of
its performance for the year ended on that date, and

(] complying with Ausiralian Accounting Standards and the Corporabions Regulalons 2001,

Eric Humener
Liirechor
Moore Stephans

2T Qetaber 2010
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MOORE STEPHENS

AODCHINTANTE & AERACEE
=

138 Flgor, 5557 Contitlion Avemun
Carmpbell ALT 35132

PO B F7, Campbesll &CT 1683

il U Gds B
vl [O]F 6330 BEE1

T st L

AUDITOR'S INDEPENDENCE DECLARATION
UNDER SECTION J07C OF THE CORPORATIONS ACT 2007

To the Members
Mational Disability Services Limaed
{ACN: 008 445 485)

I declare thati, bo the besi of my knowledge and baliaf, during the year ended 30 June 2010 there have
been:
[}  noconbraventons of the audilor independencs requansments a3 et oul in ihe Corporalions
Act 2001 In relafion 1o the audit; and

(i} nocontraventions of any appicabla code of professional conduct in relation 10 the audt

Eric Hummaer
Director
Moo Staphens

Canbesra
T Oclober 2010

pborie Sephee. Caslerrrs Audit My Lol Aothoriued Aol Comoomy bioe 5008 Ak 45 154 337 3500 Liabelay bhinvked by 8 stheie

sprereerd uneter Frofenesnal SEandarda tepralansn. T Corberia Mpew e §ie i B ™ & pariner i ageed ol ey il WMo
i

rishiend fren Bn aylepedddérell S Tlmii (f S0 TSN D masanal |imtied M n e il '-"'-'ll--ll""""l“
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HATROMAL DISABILITY BERWMICES LD - A0M 008 245 438

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

S AT B juse O hote Faia i} i)
5 -

CURRENT ASSETS 92)
Cash and cash eguivalents 4 34,037 552 B0.050 0493 (rl;
Receoivabies 5 B22.004 748 525 —
oaher ] 733116 2%4 RES =

TOTAL CURRENT ASEETS A5.503, 704 21,530 =

HOM CURRENT ASSETS 8
Property, plant and equipmient 7 1,617 B899 1,758, 367 c

TOTAL NON CUBRRENT ASSETS 1,803 feied 1,763, 26T S

TOTAL ASSETS 37 105,583 33602 350

CURRENT LLABILITIES
Payables ] 1,558,507 1,651,439
Interest Bearing Rabilitie: ] 108, 12 541
Proisionns ] 56182 55357
Unparmed revenue 41 10,316, 372 26,585 575

TOTAL CURRENT LIABILITIES 31,590,284 23144 910

MOH CUREENT LIABILITIES
Inberast bearing labibties ] 2L s 44 Ey
Provisiors 0 1R TME 0GR

TOTAL BON CURRERT LIARILITIES 244,039 145 BaT

TOTAL LIABRIMES 1L E ZRI99A5T

EQUITY
Regarves 13 E51, 555 =T
Eetained wirpie 4,181,722 31 538 6LH

TOTAL ECANTY ﬁ!? l.l-h&

Tl BOLEMBARVING Aol foirm part of thede fnancal itatements.
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MNATHOMAL DISARILITY SEAVICES LTD - ACH S08 285 484

STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
PO THE VAR ENDED B e 080

rgtr 200 iy
g 5
REVENLE Irom ordinary acthities i 14,837, 08 0465 15
Staffireg costs G277 a0 54,30
OCoUDERDY COBE 1572, 3300 1450, 778
Other administrative costs (4,842, 053 05,784, B30
Project Costs 3,863, G50 1,719,348
Depreclation and amortisation 13432,535 I53,391
Prafitiiass on disposal of asets 3 i1.305 12,536
Borrowing cots 5 57  0Em
Surplus | [Defici) for the year 631,784 13,767
Deher comprabanshe incama:
HEL XN on revalualoon af non-ourrént et - -
MEE Nodigain o rfvahidticn of findncidl Shiets = =
‘D compeahansive Income Tor tha yaar = =
Tatal comprahanghos incoma for the year 631,764 B3 767

The Jccoam panyirg notes form part of these findncial Statements
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MATIONAL DISABILITY SERVICES LD - ACH D08 448 483

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
Fil Tl YEAR ERaDED 30 sune 3010
Note 20 208 %
5 5 o
Operating actbdties :|
2ecaipts From memisert and cuttomer 18, B0, 152 30,018,875 CZ)
PEYTFIBALE 10 SupDBErT A e oy [ME, 114, 505 10,454, 402y
Interert recelved 5135 552,008 T
BOrTewig costs 781 15, 068 8
et cash provided oy used i aperating acthmnes 1mhi 189 074 30,200,432 2
mesting activities
Procesds from progerty, pdant and egulpment el ] 145, 527
Purchases of property, planst and equipment ka2l (B, 0550
SUDsidios mppeheng for cCapdtal items - -
Net cash prosided by jused ind investing sotiaithes (0BG (30 545
Elrancireg activities
Procescs from rrawings a 16475
Regayment of finance lease principad C1E 650 2013
Pegayment of barrowings . .
Met cash provided by tused 0 financing activities (18,350 X
HEL movernent in crh and cash equivalents 3078 =97 19,882,373
CHIP and cah squivalents at beginning of year 0 558 065 11,069,718
Cash and cagh equivalents atend of yesr 1830 24037 501 M.959.093

The 3CoEManying notes fohm part of these Anancial starements.
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NATHMINAL DESABRITY SERVICES LTD = AZH 038 445 484

STATERENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
FEIR THE YLAR ENGIED 30 bane 2050

Eeserves

iesalied In 'fﬂ“;“ Taal
ROLE 1.5
Ealance at 4 July 2008 SERESE  ZEaEM 3.7EF.TIT
Net surplus [igeRic) for the year . 13767 6%, 767
MEBMBAIES ir redenes 100, D00 1000, 000 .
Bakiris A0 1 Juky F003 bR ESE T SMEIR 4,604,494
et surpius § oeficiny for e vear . 631,783 637,704
Movamants In resenves 41,3 1130 :
Balance 3t 30 June HH10 B51 565 4181 7I3 5,033,287

The acoomaanying notes form gart of these financial stateents.
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HATIOMAL DISABILITY SERVICES LTD - ACH DR 445 455

MOTES TO THE FINAMCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 52 June D220

Meote 1: Seatessied of Sigaificans Accaunting Palizms
Tha Ananciil SETements consr Mitanal ity Services UmBed. Natiorgl Disability Services Umited 52
company imited by guarantes, inoorporated and comeciled In australia. The financial statements of the
COMPANY INCoaparate the dcthities oF tee Matieaal OFfice and il SEAEE diviions of KOS,

Ests of Preparation

This financial staterments e geascil purpose finandal stabements that have Been preépared in 3scerdance
with Australian Accounting Sandangs, Australian Accounting InTenpeetations, obher authoritative
pronounosments of the Ausiraiian Accourting Standards Board and th Cossorations Ak 2531,

)
m
O
=
o
p
M
o
c
Py

A i Accounting Standands that have been issued Byt are not wet offective ot balance date Rave not been
appdsd i1 the preparation of this Anancal regort. Th postibe imgacts of the nital Apphsation of theds
Agtaunting Standarcs nawe not been amessed,

Thae foilowing i 3 summary of the significant acoounting policles adopted by the company in the preparation
of this finandl réport. The accounting policies have been conststenthy applicd, uniess othoratse stated,

The accounting poliches S8 ouT Delow ho'ee Deen COrMEiaNty appied bo all yBar: predanted

The financial roport has Decn prepared on an 3corual bash and B based on Riston oy codts mookhed by the
rEalEaEon of selechid nén-ourmént Metd, financial asets and financial kabilibes for which the fairvalue bass
of acozunting nas Deen applied.

3}  InCooETax
national Disabiiy Services Limited | exempt from income f3x under (e provisions of the inceme Tax
Afsegament Act,

by Erooerty. Plant and Eoulpment
Each ctags of property, plant and eguipment 15 canmied at cost less, where applicable, amy accumuated
depredation and impsinment 1055,

The canmying amaunt of progsrty, plant and egquipment i§ révievwed annually by the Company o ensurg
It Is ot In excess of the reEmamning service potential of [hese wseis.

Property, plant and aquipmment purcnades with a cost of less than 51,000 are expensed in the period of

Al classes of property, plant and equipment are depreciated using the straight line method.
Depreciation s charged at the folicwing rates:

Claks of fxid aEEets Rates
Furniture, plant and equipment 10333
Motor wahicles oo
Leadad machinss and éguipmeént 3
Leagahaidifreenold bulidings 25%

The asets’ resiiual values and efel ves ane reviesed, and adjusted IF approgriate, at eadh balance
sneel date
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HATIOHAL DESABRLITY SERWVICES LTD - ACH 008 445 255

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOOR THE TEAR ENGED 30 lure 2510

Nofe 1z Slatemant of Significan Accownting Policias | oontinesd)

ick

Elnancisl istruments

Hecognition

Elraneisl instruments ars irdtially reuned 50 fair value on Drade Sate which mchades Dranact o, codts,
when the related contractual rignts or obdigations eat. Subseqwent o Inlkial resognition these

IS DFLAE 5 B8 MR asure s B El Sl Bedov.

Lares and recetabing
Loars and recaivables are non-derivative financad assels with fiwed or detenminable payments that ane
MO Guated In an active market and ane stated at amortised cost wing the effective interest rate

mathod

Held-te-maturiy IresImenrs

TrEsE |WEsDmenDs e fined maiurities, and it B the oomparmy s Mention U fok NMESe irESTments i
maturty. Any held-do-maturity investments held by the company are stated at amortised cost wsing the
effective iNTErest rate method

AR ole-tor-2 financial asoets
Awgifable-for-=ale fingnc'al assets are refected at faw value. Unrealsed gains and bsses ansing from
ERANges iR FAlF valus Sre Dyken Siredly o &quity. Mo Svaibie-for-sake findncidl Fitels wers held by the

Comoany during the year.
Enanoal liabaiees

ron-gertvathee Financial iaiites are subsequenthy recognised at amertsed cost, comprising original
dent s principal paymenis and amortisaiion,

Cash and Cash Squlvaients

C23£n and Gish equivalents Include cash on hand and degasits held at il with banks or finandal
Institutions.

Erreiorea B enefils

Prowiseom i made for the Company™s Faility for employee benefitt arising from endces rendensd By
Emgidyees bo balande date. Employes Dencdits that are eupected to De settied within one year Rave
boon meagired at the amouts specied b be pald winen he labSty |5 settied, pus related on costs.
Ermpliyée benefils payvable Biter than one year have Deen measured af the present value af the
estimated future cash outfices to be mace for those benefits. Contributions are made by the company
[ employecs’ Ssupcrannuation funds and ane charged a5 sxXpanses wihan inoenred,

Leases
Lerses of fleed asets where Substantially all of the risics and benefits Intidental ta the cwnershio of the

asset, out nok tha begal owmership, ang transferred 0o the Company ane classifed 25 fnante bEaces.
Fifance |eed 3 capitallied recording an asset and a llabdity equal to tha present value of the
mirdmum lease DEWTSENS, inclding any guaranteed resldual values. Lease payments ane alloated
between the reduction of the lese Kaglity and the esse intergst expenge for the period. Lease
Eayments for operating exses whnere substantiany all the risks and banedise remaln wich the betsor,
are charged a5 @penics in the perigds in whith they ang incumed.

Lesyitr IRCentives under operating leases are recognised as a orovision and amortised on a siralgnt ling
sy ower the e of the ease penm,

Cperating lease payTrents are sxpended on 3 Srakgnt line pass wheih B representative of the pattern of
banefits derived from the leased assets.

Maia pood obligations arising from aparating hestes 5ra recognised 24 & provishen for nmake good and 3
depreciabie Moel on COMMENcement of the lease.
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HATIOHAL DISABILITY SERVICES LTD - ACH D08 845 &23

MOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATERENTS
FOR THE TEAS EMDED B3 Juse W10

Hobs 1: m«wnmm:uw

"

i

Eocedlslons

srowisons are recognised when the Company has 3 present obligation (egal or constructiae 35 @ result of
A PAAT &Nt T, B probapde that the Company Wwill e nequired to settie the obligation and a nelabie
estimate can ba made of thie amount of the oblgation. Thie amount recsgnissd 35 3 provisian i the best
estimate of the consideration reguire to settle the prosent obligation at the end of the reparting
peried taking Into account the risks and uncertamties wrrolnding the obigaton. DUFnG the cETant
finanoal year, the Company necognised provisions In respect of long sendce leave, make good
ahllgations, lease Incentives and Companlon Card refumnds mefer note w0k,

)
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Coum o figures
Whasre nporEsAny, coimparatier figures have been agiusied [0 conform (o changes In presentation in
Tinis francial nepon.

EEVEMIE AeDagNTudn
M eTship subscriptions are recognised a5 revenue Wi Due.
operational orants aré reconnissd 83 révenué progrésdieily Cetr Ehe périod of the grant. Opérational
grants recefvad In respect of fubure Financial Yeats ane recognised 35 inNoome recefved in advance
illablithes, unearned revenue,

Project granits ane recognised a5 revenue to the extent that the monles have been appliad In accordance
with the conditions of the grant. Project grants receved prior 1o the year end Dyt unexpended a5 at
that cate are recopnbsed as unegended project grants (aities, unearned revenuel.

Conference and seminar (NCome 5 recognEed a5 MevVenrue on COMpletion of (Ne evenl Imome
received priof to the hol@ng of the event B recognised a8 Incame recihaed In advance labiitie,
unEarned Income

PuRiCATIoNS sakes ane recognised upon celiveny of goods U0 [he cusioemer,
Bwvanue from The rencening of senviies i recognised upon the delitsery of the servios Do The CusTommer.

InEerast Income i recognised on @ proptiona Basis king INDo ACHMeNT the INCErest rates appiable o
the financial 335805

Al revEiue 5 SEe Nt of e ITunt 6f goods and tervited Lix iG5T),
Donations and giher contrioutions are recognised at the fime funos are receved.

Imgalrment

At each regorting date, the Compamy reviews the canrving values of it tanglbde and Intangicde assets 1o
determing vwhether there | any Indication that these dsets have been impalréd, if sudh an indication
avists, the recowerable amount of the asset, being the higher of the asset's fair value e costs 1o 2l and
walue [n USe, B cOMBansd 0 he 2550E Crmying value. &5 3 notdor-profit entity, valwe in use for the
Company. according to AASE 136 mpalrment of Assets, i5 depreciated replacemwent cost. Ay excess of
The el cCamying valee oeer (5 recoyerabie amount (s expensed [0 the statement of comprehensvwe
IncooTe,

Criticl acoounting cstimatesand Rd@ements.

Thi dirgCfors cvaluate cstimates and judgements Incorporated Into the financial neport Dasad on
nistorical Mmowiedpe A et hvdilabie current information. ESHmales aSurms 3 reasonable eapectation
of future avents and ane tased on cunrent trends and economic data, oo@Ened botn externally ans
within the Coampany.

Koy Eimaes - impaimment
Thie Compaivy M0ested Fnpairment at each reporting date by evaluating conditions specific to the
Company that may kead Do impairment of assets. Should an impalrmment indlcator exdst, The
defenmination of the recoverable amount of the ttet may regulrs incorporation of a numbe” of Ky
estimates. Impaliment IndRCators Were gresent at 30 June HA0 due [0 oustanding accounts receivable
debtors which ane not expected to be recovened refer nobe 5,

Ry dudloradfig - Mok fr!

Tre Commpany Bat guantified e aoared Mok good coitt On OPEraing IEases an The Batit o Cott pir
stuane metrg using relevant estimates from persons in tne Industry, The estimated value of make good
CoATS AL year end was 551,500 wrefer ngte 100
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HATIOHAL DISABILITY SERVICES LTD - ACn D08 45 483

MOTES TO THE FINAMCIAL STATEMENTS
FCi= THE FIRAS EMDOD 30 ura 2013

i I R s

Operaling acrdites
Government grants

Gaher grants

Membership Sutsoriplion
Conferencs and Seminar fees
Publication sales

Project income

Rt

InbErest

Profit on csposal of property, plant and equipmient
other

Doanations

Total Revenis

HMobe 3: Surplus ! [Deficlt] for the Year

{3) Expansas
Operating iease rentals - office premises
Employes enefits expense : cefined contriouwtion
LuperanrLation plan
Depradation & amortestion of non-cune e el
= buigings
- hurndture, plant and eoulpment
= rencvakions
« |@aser mahnires and aquipment
« Motor v ches
Total gepraciation & amortisation

BOCTOWANeg CosTs
Loss i5aln on dispotal of property plant ans
equiprrent

impairment - Trade recehablos

i) Sigrntcand Fi-rtvat dord Fxginiea
Contarence and seminar scthities:
- FEVENLE
- Epangiture
Contribution to operating prodin

Note 4: Cash and cash egulvabents

Casn on hangd and at bank
hort torm Seposits

2l Adminiziered Funds

1.568,176

78,138
1512876
1,387,746

795352
L

Mz

_ s
14 B37, 01

414,061

b3t
81,155
49,174
15,185

E3Y3X
341 585

&

1303

A3ET L6

1,505, S
32954

2,251,790
209,081
1,579,064
1,137,580
ag,793
3,984,553
70,580
61,435
13,365
731,137

P -

-

hE LR

s

o AT
145817

11,543
T8
4507

5157
30,546

Cash and cash equivaients mciude funds relating Lo projects agmin‘itered on behal? of sxtema’ third party

crganksations

These fnds aré not sadlable for GtAbution in NDSS operations.

The Dotad ameawnt of expernal third perty organisations funds being 2amirnEtersd a3 at 30 une 200 &

517,905,454 (2009 517,038,518,
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MATHINAL DISABILITY SERVICES LTD - ACH (08 445 485

MWOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
PR THE VEAZ URDND 30 ure 2008

200
£
Nute i Becenabing
CUREENT
Trade debiors BSOS
ARovwanoe For impalrment of receivabies {0 A
B22596

RELHLIES
121,

L

ADTTU LS recehaiie Includes imaces rased on Detalf of external third parties organEation for which we

BEMIRETEr Various prejects.

The amaunts reiating to cutstanding inmoes as at 30 June 2000 5 5342, 250 (2009: Snib.

There 5 o smpairment againit [hese recervables,
a0 Alicreance for Impalirment of recehvabies:

Current Crade debuors are genéraily on 30 Sy (armd. These recelvanies are assesed for recoserabity and an
alcwance for imipalrment is recogeised when there i oojective evidence that an indivicual tradi deblor is

NGt recoverable Tete amMourts e Been incuten i ot oaxpenss Bems,
laovement in the allwanc: for imparment of recehabies i 25 fofows:

Gpenang balance 21,
Migpagnon Charged a5 expensa for tha wear 49,00M
Ampunts wrikbon of f -
Closing be@ance £, Tos

21, h08

21 f

All amuants in trade debbors which are post due have been incluted In the allowance for i pairment. Al

oliver brade dentors are expected to be recelved when dug

Wobs §: Other cusrest saa s

ACCrsed incoime E56, 655
Prepayments 185 €37
Cenasits =515

Mode T Proparty, plasd arad sguipmen

Buldings on freencid lang - 3T COSt - refer [ote B0 4%

BLdings on leaehold and - 2t cost 465 514
Renoyations = at cost SET TS
ACCUMULNTe D dapreciation €524 £76)
— 1oosaEd

Furniturs, plant and squipment = at cost 1312620
Accumulited cepreciatian £565 147)
1T ATE

Motor vehiched = at cost 14 AL
ACcumpiated gepreciation 1152 075

10310

Leaspd madhined 3ro &eu0ipmant - at oot el L]
Brosmulated depreciation — H306m
— BT

Toial Property, Plant and Equipment 1IE‘I?IBH

Kat yet recabhved

74,745
142,377
14,543

92,603
(26,357
—T0

1,753 267

a1 B liotngs on freansid 1and inckuded 3 propecty 3T 59 wWalterd Boad, Osbomae Park, WA which is held and wed
b MOS wdeT 3 Beed of trust In which KOS anc the Lottenes Commission of Western AusCralia are tenants in
COHTHTEON drefer 10 MoLe 20 for fufther detalls of thi benfeficial nberests of the Lotteres Comméssion of
Wiestern Augiralial. As IT is the infention of NDS 0o coniinee To Nold nd e this Dropenty AT 1easr until me
EXHraton of the ceed of st e buliding has been recognised as an asset of NOS subject to the contingent

Eablity disclosed on note 20,
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HATROKAL DISABILITY SERVICES LTD - ACH 008 445 235

MOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATERMENTS
FOR THE TEAR FNDED 1) e 110

Hote T; Progarty., plant and couipemend [contwed]

2010 =10 2mn 2040
I Arerent B T Canrying amounts for each cass Land, Furniturne, plant Maotor Leasad
Do kdings and machines and
of property, plant and egulpment between the rerctions, IO BGDTENT  venices T L
sEgImnING and thsend of the Curment Flranciul yess £ % c .
ooening Balance 963,545 458 P00 £5, 762
Aogilion - cah contideration 23814 Ta GER M3l "
AGGITons - Make good and lease iIncentives 85,554 - - -
RECOVETankE aMOURt write daws : 7,542 4,230 -
Disposals . P54 0553 -
Deprociation and amartiation expanse 465,02 MEIEE 2 7Em HEAS
thosing Balance 1,005 147475 20,310
210 2009
Note 8: Payables 5 5
CURRENT
Uit Mbtktins.
Creditors ang accrued expenses 246929 476,718
G5T pavable 75,5848 1885910
Emplayee benefits savable 73,305 34,457
Provkion for annual ey 342 425 257,345
1,538 507 2 F54.8%0
Wobs 5 Inisrest bearing ez
CURRENT
Lease iability 19,622 18,314
Creit card £ 596 83229
q 18 71 543
HON-CUBRENT
Leas Mability 75 315 44,889
E 1 E =il E
Mode 10- Provisions
CUEBPENT
Provislan for long service leave L 22,80
Lease incentive Saoility 20,175 -
Companion Card refunds 500 10,470
E‘I’Bﬂ !!IJEE
NON-CURRENT
Provision for long senvce leave 145 734 01,058
Lease incentive Rabllity 21,085 .
Provigion for makegoad 54,500 .
8,776 101,068

Thar lease incantive |03ty reates bo payments recehved froem the lsssor & 3 contribution towands the fit oul
GO OF |eldad premmises in Wetorla and rew South Wales. The moerbhee 5 treated as an 556t In the books of

Naticnal Disabliity Services Cogether with 3 commespondaing iabisty in e event (R [he cOMDAny oecines 1o

leave the premiges prior o the expiny of the igxse, Amgriiation on the asets b charged to depredation ower
thia life of tha lexse. The lease incentiae B0y 5 reyted 32 & réduction in the SOmBany™ Pentsl snenied 6n
a stralgnt line basis over the lifg of the feaxse,

A maig good Banlity has boen recognisad in respect of the premises in morthenn Tenmitony, Vicioria and New

SoUThwales. This provition repréeients an SEmate for the docts of remading the company™ Mdures & MRtings
at the epiry of the kease term for each of the leased premines.
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MATIONAL DISABILITY SERVICES LTD - ACK DOB 845 485

MOTES TO THE FIMAMCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THID YTAR [RDID B3 Jane D310
g 200 wn
5 5 m
Mok 11 Unsarmsd revsnns )
CURRENT =
Memboership fees In advanoe 54,118 536,045 @)
INCOmE In acvance - Grants MTTLA 25,715,629 P
Incoamie in advance - Other o) e 145,804 T
30216372 15,385,575 8
Lah Acinkened Funds >v)

Unszar e reven e Lnder IRCOME I advance - grants, Includes funds relrting to projects agminktersd on
Befaf of Extérnal third party organiations, Thise funds 06 not form part of HDS's operathonal revenus
hosasEryer, In SoIme Crses, MOS PEceives ar JEministration fee for (e mandgerment of the funsl, o tpeeie
Predicts retating bo these funids

Acminisiration and project mandgement fiees earmed managing thete external third party organi<ations
funds during 20 were 5300000 (2002 Snil.

The total amount of unearived Pevenues Deing mdnaged on behal of extérnal third party organisations i
547,805,434 (3008 517,038 518,

Unearned revVenue foF grants to DS I8 releated Into the profit and (05 30ainst project sxpenses as they are

Incurred,
Moie 13 Employer nformation
The agpregate employee Denefit liabilty recognied and Inciuced
PayaDins (MODE: & #5780 29 80F
Provisions ikota 400 181,744 125 955
Aggregats emiployes Denefil llablty E3E5TA 415741
Kumber of emplcyess at year end i) 5]
Hote 13: Resires
CAPCa| Redirye 15000 54500
Contingency Reseve 35036 23036
Codramunl cHtiond Betsrie pili e il Lrill il
Hilirie MOOne Fedarye 100,000 400,000
Mandgement SySierm rekernd 12,000 12,000
Dnrsead Ald Polley Offloer Redare S840 SO0
General REseTee Rl 1] 200
workforce Planning mserve . '
Profhessional D BlaDmenT Retanag E=: e ] 50,000
SIRFF Awards Resene 20,000 20,000
851 BES BE2BIR
i Capital Reserye
EiEkae 30 DarDOSE Of fE St
The Capltal nesenve B used Y0 record the cost of property, plant
and ecuspment expended oul of SOETTSTEN rantd,
Mvemani in resene
Opening Dalamos S1E000 515,000
Trarsfers foom retainged surpdus. . L
Trarmsfers to retalned funphs . v

Ciosing Datance 51 EIE 516
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HATEBOHAL DESABILITY SERVICES LTD - ACH 008 445 283

MOTES T THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FON THE YEAR ENDED 13 jene 2000

Note 13: Reservaes |conbnisd)
1B Contingency Bessne

el Bod purscde of redener
Thia Contimgenoy reserve B Fonmad from unalocated
membersnip subscriptions and 4 used Lo record transactions
apsociated with monles 52t aside for special activities and
IEUEICoNS.

Aeamanty in Famenen
cpening calance 33036 53,035
Tranifers from retained surpius : ’
Tramsfers Lo refained surpius

Clasing balance 5 ﬁ!!- !!Il_]!v!

e Communications Reserve
Il A DADOS O P
Thi Communi@tions reseni Nas been estaplished to upgrade
Information technology, puliicationt and other farms of
Ccomimun ication.
Mgvamanly i resesw
Opening oatance 50,000 50,000
Transfers irgm retained surpius . ’
Trarsfers to retalned surphus - -
Closing balance — S —t00
16l Hilarle Moore Reserve
Mo and purmose of feseng

Thee Milarie MOGTS resende Fepressnts an aMOURE donated by
Hilarie Moore, a life member. Thie interest acoumuiabed from the
inyestment of the conation & [0 be Uted 10 lupport projeds in
the PAciFic region or 25 directed oy the Board,

L e e T T
Opening bafance 00,000 100,000
Transfers from retaened surpius = .
Tramsfers [oretaned surphs . =

Chpsing paance G, 000 100,003

01 MARSpEMIEnt SyStET resers
clias S Curn s ol fofeneg
ThE Management Syuhis ressrse has been establisned 1o record
transactions refated o Covernance and Professicnal
Development. Thers was nd movement In the reserve In the
CurTent year,
AEREMENIT in resane
Gperning balance 12,000 12000
Trarsfers froem retained surglus - E
Trarsfors (o retained surplus - -

Closing Dalanoe 1; E 12 E
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HATIOMAL DISABILITY SERVICES LTD - ACN D00 £45 485

MOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMEMNTS
FOR THE VE&R ENDED BE huse 1010

Nobe 13 Kesarves (contimad)

ify overseas Ald Policy Officer reserve
e g DUEose of FEBeD

The Cyerseas AT POlICY Offecer nesande 5 an amouni sai aside for

the purpods of funding the activities of a policy officer to

oromote overseas ald projects for B period of 12 manths.
MeTenE I st

cpening balance

Tramsfars from retsned surpiug

Tramsfers 00 retained surphus

CipslRg balance

igh Gameral Deserva
gty andd cyrpome of rpranag
The General resemas s used (o allpcats funds for future c2oRal
D Ciects.
Mpvmmianls i e
Opening balance
Tramslors (rom regaingd surpdus

Trargters (0 refaingd surphss
Closing balance

i} Workigns Planning Reserde
e @ curpode of rpienes
The warkforce Planning reserye is formed from
unallocited funds with mondes set askde for a
workforoe plannning strategy in 200808,
pvamanls i Faianee
OpEnng bafance
Transfers from retained surpius
Transfers (o retained surphus
Clesing malsnoe

i} Professional Development Bosenag
iafurp i purpas of rpgenes
Tha Professionsl Development resarve B formes
froem unalkocated funds with mondes sef ahde for
professional develapament fOor Wk STaf,
Movpmaily in mssn
Opening baknos
Transfers frodm renun s Jurpaus
Transfers ro refained surphes
Closing bafance
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HATIOMAL DISABILITY BERVICES LTI - ACK 008 445 483

MNOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
PO THE TEAR ENDEC 30 bone 20850

Haote 13: Reserves joontinuad)

i SEAFF Awards meetve

Sl vl PR OF i v

Thé SLaff Awaarcs meseree b forrmed from unaliocabed funds with
meonies 5o askde for staff Twards for W staff.
Plovaminls i ST

Opening balanca 30,000 20,000

Transfers frofm racained surplus . "
Transfers Lo recalned surpius = -

€losing bafance ranfnes] 20 Do
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HATRGHAL DISABILITY SERVICES LTD - ACH 008 445 535

MOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE VE&AK ENDED 50 jura 20005

Huls T4 Company delaity

Thie Company operates within the deabliity field within Australia

The company & 3 pubes company limited by guaranies. The registered office and principa pRce of Dusinggs

o Lhee COM Py i$ ACROD Houde, 53 Thetiger Court, Deakin ACT,

The princips place of Dusiness |5:

Hational office
ACROD HoLSE

53 Tnesiger Court
DEAKIN ACT 2600

WG ACT Division
ACROD MU

33 Thesiger Court
DEAKN ACT 2600

THIDS: NS D lon
Leved 4

ED PriE Street
SYDONEY WSW 2000

NOS NT Cihvthon
LEved 1, Sulle 5, 45 Cavenagn Street,
DARWEH, NT, 0501

NOS OLD Division
Sulte 9. Loveld

Lutwychia City Shopping Contre
543 Lutwyche Road

Lutwyche, OLD 4030

NOS SA Chvision

Ground Leved, Bullding 4

5245 Sir Donald Bradman Drive
MILE EMID 54 501

NS TAS Dihvislon
2 ¥ Macouarie Sreet
HOBAET Tas P00

S VIG Diwision
107 369 Royal Farade
PARROALLE 'WIC 3052

KOS WA DivEcn
Uit 1, 59 Waiker s Drnve
CSE0aNE PARK WA BINT
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MATIONAL DESABILITY SERVICES LTD - ACH 208 485 dis

NOTES TD THE FINANMCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR T YEAR ENDUD 0 Jene 2020

Moke 13: Economic dependency

The Company repefves significant financil aupgart from the Commonveith Department of Farmilics,
Community Servicss and iIndigenous Affalrs

Thie ACT Division recesnes significant financial support from the ACT Soverrament. Department of Disabivty.
HOWENg and Community Sanvices.

T MW Oivishon recelves significant finandal support from the NSW State Gowermement iCepartument of
Ageng, Datality and Home Canel,

The Worthern Territory Division receives significant financial support from the Korthem Terrtory Degarirnent
of Mealth & Familles

T Cueendiand DoEon receives Sgnificant financlal support from the State Departrment of Disabilty Services
SuEansiang.

Thae South Aust ralisn Division recehves sianificant fnandal Wispon oo the South Austrilla Departmedt fof
FarniBes and Commiinities,

The Tasmania Dhasion recehves sipnifcant finandal aupport from the Timanlah Department of Health &
HUMan Services.

The victorian DiVEIGh restve significant finandal suoport from Ehe Department of Human Services (ictoria
The Western Australlan D0vson recetves sianific@nt firancial SLpoort from The Wa SCaTe Gowernrmen’

200 2000
g £
Nobe 16 Audibery’ mamoseral o
Remuneration of the suditors for:
- Buditing the financa repart of the Dhislons 11,78 50438
- suditing the finamiiy report of NDS Limited 48,285 7938
- pUNer services - a
2,003 BA 34
Note 17; Capital and leasing commismsms
ial FAnance lease oommIsments
Payable:
=not ter than 1 year Fo 21150
= [ater thn 1 year DUl not BLer than 5 years :'..LE.!‘II!. I.TE!
Minlmum lease payments 48035 B8.557
Less future finance charges I3, 148) 06, 654)
Toral lease il 44 53R 41,67

Thie Kational OFfioe in ACT has one finance lease for 3 Konicy photetapler whikh &pires in Bovember 2311,

NS Rl DD leases WiTh Pujl Joero for PRODOCODEETS - [ leaded oommenced 13 Februey 2009 for 48 months
nepires 1205,

The NT Dison has one finance lease with Full Xerox for a photocopier which expires in Febreary 2013

ibl Sperating lease cormamilments HHD 9
Eayakie: g &
- nat ke than 1 yal 361,544 426,028
- ater than 1 year but not Eier than 5 years 657996 55,002

e —LIE0
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MATHOMAL S ABILITY SERVICES LTD - ACH 008 445 455

MWOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE VIEAR ERDED B dens 2020

Th WT Dhvision Igases 0ffice premibses showm in Mobe 14 above (expines 29 Februany 201 2 with an sption to
atend for three vears until February BH 5, Rent (4 fubdect bo an indréxse by OF ebarwind annually on the
annbersary of the benancy

wn
ik} Operating lease commitments (oont'cd g
_|
NN Diviskon leases office prémises and car 30aces at the addness shown In Mot 148 above (eopires April 20T 6
with an ption to edend for three years until April 20451, Bent is subject 0o 8 5% annual increase, from e =
BNNNErsary date
Ty MW Divigion hags a 20 monkh suiease of Lewel 10 &0 S0t Sorest with ADex COrsulting (expiring 29 m
September 2010 o
(@
v

Thee Gusensand Ghadon leres ofics space M the 30dress shown in Nobe 14 abowe iexpines In June 2010

The South Australlan Division |eases office prémises Al Chie S0dnes Shisn in Note 14 lexpenes 1 September
3 with an optlon to extend for five years unill Aprll 20481 Bant s sulbject to an annual ©F thor Adelaldel
Inorease on the annaversany of e (Enancy

The Tasmantan Divismon has a rental lease 'with Logk Developmaents POy Lid 1o provide offica accommodation
and parking re 37221 Macquarss Hreel HoRart | The lease sxmires on 1 Daiemiber 2044, Rent 15 subjedt Lo an
annual Increase on 1 Deoemder eadh year by COP1 tHabarti,

The Divislon entered 0D @ secomd a rental I2ase with Losk Develspments PEy LEE 1o prowide oiflos
aceommadation sl the address shom in Kote 14 aboye. The lease expires on 1 December 206 2. pent b subject
to an annuad increase on 1 Decemiber each b By OM (Hobart

Thé victorian Covision KEfes Office prémiees and car 5paces on A 5 vear term at the adaress shawsn in nobe 14
abowe lexpines 33 February 20441,  Benl i3 subject to anpual fixed pereentage mereass of 3,759 an the
anmniversary date 07 Marchi,

The Company has an agreement for Frogrammed Malntenance Senvices” for the maintenance of ACROD Houss
in Canbperra ACT. This agreement expires in Navember 2012,

Receivable
- it iater than 1 year 33,000 7500
- DR Than 1 ysr DUt st Ik than 5 years -ﬂ“,ﬂﬂ -

L N - 5

The Comparry his a remlal ke with Fodus ACT Intorporated to provide office accommodation. The lease was
roniwed an the I Qcbobor 2009 for o Further § years under the Dermd snd conditions of the original
AGrEETET
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HATHINAL DISABILITY BERVICES LTD « A5H 008 445 485

MNOTES TO THE FINAMCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THI FTAR EROD 1) Jane 20

Miste 17: Cagital Bnd lesaing commiments (conbnsed)
ich Capltal Expengiture commitmients
Payable:

- not @ter than 4 year
+later than 4 year but not Wier than 5 years

Mobe 18; Caxh flow nformalion

(%) Rgeaocdation of ¢adh
Cash at the end of the financial year as §hown in e

Cash attets

1B Faconcdiation of no cash relaling B cperiig acfbics
o ral Erplus
et sarplus
Hon-cash Fioas in aperating surpks:
GainfLoss on deposal of plant and aquipment
Deprecation and amortisation
impalrrment of recoivable assets

Reduction in leae ndemthve & makegood lablitie
Chamges In 2detd and lamiies:
Recefabes

CERer clrent assers
Payanhes

Unearned resenue
Provishors
Tramsfer 10 reserves
ML Cxh relating 0o Spdrating Acthvities
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NATIOMAL DISABILITY SEAVICES LTD - ACH (08 45 438

MNOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

PO THE YEAR EnDED 10 bene 2010
i) Lineased crodi Facfilins

The Company s Dars American Sxpresd credit 308 winlch are standard charge cards with nd eredit imi

The company Ras a NAB Business Cang SAciity of 100,000 which k secuned by 3 Mational Comgany Tenm
pepasit. There are currently 20 Business Credlt Cands Reld by MOS stalf. The unlsed balince of the sas

Esinegs Credi§ Card facibty s S50 415 and |5 hield by e company a5 a2 whok.
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Mietn 19: Subsequoent Events.
T firandl report of the Company weas uthorissd for Esee on the date that the Directons” Report was
signed by the directors.

Mot 20: Centingen Linbikeien
If Setaber 2005, Unil 5 a0 59 Walters foad, Cisorme PArk was purchased for $260.000. The Lotteries
Commbssion comtripubeg 5130 000 towands the Cost of These pramises,

& Dead of Trust has been drasm up IR relation DD this wook with tha follcvwing Derms

il The Trustse iNFtiona | DiabEILyY Serdioes W holds the prooerty on Trust for Ese ang thi Lottaries
COmeTiRSIce 35 Lemants In Common n respect o the number of undivided shares a3 spedified in the Deed
shiEdule

i Thie urdivided share Lo the Lotteries Commisshon wal Be 130 000260000

s The Defm of the Deed i 15 years. AL the tnd of the Bem (2020 the Lotberics Commisshons benefusial
Inberest in the property will nevert to Matfonal Dsabliity Senvoes Wi

Thtt werithén dewm waioe of this praperty & at 30 June 2010 was $229,125 (2005 5329.66M

-1 h] .11
] 5
Mo 217 oy Mara gt Parsonne] Compenantae
Enort term Denefits 1,045 52 520,194
TEta Campensation 1B b B0, 164

Kole I Redabed Pariies

Redpied paty Fransod s
Transactions babwiesn relalas panses are o niomal Dams and cenditions nd mors fvouwrable than thode
anvdiiabie b3 Othir pearsons unless othenaise stabed

During the year 3 company controled By Gordon Trisern, M5 National Board member, prowided the
fodlcradng finandal sendced for S 15676 200% 5150730 NG MThounts wird UTEAnding 3T yadr &rd in rédpst
of thesl Services.

Anandal erviced provioed auring 200910 indciuoe:
1, Payroll and acoounting semvioes;

2. Iniial procesing of payments and recHDs up to gregaration of monthy and annal fingnelal reporting
3. Monthly financal reports, aralysis and varbal presentation 0o State CommiThes;

A, ACQuIttal of grants B warious funding bodes and completion of BAS refurns; and
5. Orther strateqic and financial suppor &1 requined.
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MATIONAL DESARLITY SERVICES LTD - A0k (08 425 455

MOTES TO THE FINANCLAL STATEMENTS

QR Tial YEAR EMOE D10 bgng 303D

Mecze 23 Financial Rink Management
LIk Financial Ritk Mansgement

Financia! Rigk Manageman! Palfces

The Company's principal fnandal Instrismants comprise cash 3t bank, receivalies and 3Coounts paryabie.
These financisl instruments arise from the aperations of the Company. The Company dos not R any
gorhvatnig Instrnamants at 5 June 30100 1T1E, and has pean throughout the period undes revies, the
Cormaanys policy that na trading in finandsl (RStrufents $hall be undertaken,

Financ! Righ Expodnars and Masagemant

The maln nisks arising from the Company's finandal irttrumants 30e imtarest rate risk, lguldity risk, and
credil risk, The polices for manaming each of [hese risks are surmimarnised Delow.

inferest rale risk

The COMPany's ExposLre [0 maroet risk for CRanges in interest rates retates prirmarily £o the Companys
hoddirgs of cash and cash equivalents, Tne Company's polloy |5 tomanzge ks interast Income i through
reguiarty reviesing the Interest rabe Deing recelvisd on cash and cash equivelents 3nd comparing this returm
B0 EPr Marces.

Edguaebity ridsh

Tt Coamipaey R nio acter nal Fundeng o Facilities in pEace, Tha COmpany maneges ks Rguedity to arsune
that it has sutficlent cash and cash eguhalent holdings to mest all $hart, megium and long [erm
requirements.

Cred® nigh

They Compary 00ps ot provide oredit, With respect 0o credit risk; arising from the other financial assets of
the Cormpany which comprise cash and cash equivalents, the Companry's sxposure to oredit risk arises from
gefaulk of the counter party, with 3 maximuem exposune squal T The Canrying AMouUT of &b InsTnumencs.
T Company dogs net nave any material credit risk exposung to ary sindgle neoshabie or group of
recalvables under financial instrurments entered Ino by the Company. The Oomipany mandges aredit risk by
malntalning cash depotits with established fnanclal institutions,

B0 Wet fair values

The ned falr value of financial asets and liabWitles aporoximates the values shown In the statement of
Financiad position and the nobes thersbo,
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33 Thesiger Court Deakin ACT 2600
Locked Bag 3002 Deakin West ACT 2600
P 02 6283 3200 | F 02 6281 3488
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